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Building on our
core strengths

Benefit from external
growth drivers

Regulatory and gaming risk
exposure minimised by a highly
tallored local market offering
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Is Increasingly valuable and
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Overview

Highlights

> Integration of Centrebet proceeding well and in line with expectations

> EBITDA for the year up 11% to £51 4m

> Amounis wagered up 4% year on year to £2,054m with NGR up 1%’

> Amounts wagered online in Australia up 62%

> In play continues to perform strongly ~ now 67% of European amounts
wagered (2010 61%) at an industry leading margin of 97%

> Final dwvidend of 1 1p making a total of 1 7p (2010 1 6p)

> Sold start to new financial year NGR up 17% in first two months

Financial highlights for the year

2011 2010
Amounts wagered 2,053 9 1,971 3
Total revenue 206 3 207 5
EBITDA®" 51.4 465
Adjusted operating profit* 38.1 354
Group operating profit 24.4 71
Ad)justed diluted EPS** {p) 63 62
Diluted EPS {p} 39 07

*  Exduding discantinued terntories and at constant currency
** Adjusted to exclude exceptional items of £10 Bm {2010 £24 5m) share option ¢harge and amortisatian of other
intangible assets
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Overview

Chairman’s statement

Peter Dicks, Chairman

“Our long-term trading
strategy has been
consistently executed
leveraging our proprietary
best-in-class trading
technology which
has enabled us to
deliver an outstanding
trading performance”

This has been a year of significant
progress for the Group both in terms

of finantial performance and corporate
developments Agreement with the US
Department of Justice in September
2010 was followed in August 2011 by
the acquisition of Centrebet m Australia
and the passing of regulations in two of
our largest markets, Greece and Spain
Sportingbet 1s now well positioned to
maximise the growth opportunities
avallable to 1t as the global online gaming
market continues to develop We already
have market leadership in around 50%
of the territories in which we operate

I am pleased to announce a strong set of
financial results for the year with EBITDA
increasing 11% to £51 4m The benefits
of operating across a broad geographical
base were demonstrated with strong
growth in our Emerging Markets division,
Australia and some of our European
countries, offsetting the economic
weakness in two of our largest markets,
Greece and Spain  This limited the averall
decrease In revenue to 1% although the
comparative pened did benefit from the
Football World Cup which 15 estimated to
have benefited last year's NGR by £8 5m
The decrease in revenue was more than
compensated for at the profit level by
tight cost control In addition to the

cost synergies being realised following
the Centrebet acquisition, the focus on
adjusting the cost base to reflect the
economic conditions and the increased
cost of newly requlated markets wll
continue over the coming penods

Qur overall strategy of providing a first
class sports betting product offering
customers an unprecedented number of
betting opportunities at all times of the
day, remains unchanged Sports betting
15 our focus as it offers the greatest
scope to differentiate our product from
competiiors and prowvides significant
barners to new entrants Qur long-term
trading strategy has been consistently
executed leveraging our proprietary
best-in-class trading technology which
has enabled us to detiver an outstanding
trading performance This success has
been dearly demonstrated by an in play
margin of nearly 10% compared 10 5%
or less for our competitors To provide

a comprehensive suite of products for
our customers, we supplement the

core sports offering with casino, games
and poker products bought in from

the leading suppliers in the mdustry

As the online gaming industry matures,
governments across the world are
recogrising the significant potential
contnibution from online gaming tax
revenues as a means to replenish
national budget deficits and the need
to bring 1n regulation to protect the
consumer and provide a stable trading
environment We welcome these
maves and have been explonng ways
of increasing the percentage of our
revenue denived from regulated markets




In line wath this strategy we recently
acquired Centrebet International
Limited, a business which predominantly
operates in the regulated Australian
market This acqusition has rassed the
percentage of the Group's proforma
revenue denved from regulated
markets to over 32% for the 2010/11
finanaal year Following completion

of the acquisition on 31 August 2011,
the integration of Centrebet with our
existing Australian sportsbook business
1s progressing well and the enlarged
operation has a market leading position
with over 30% share in what Is a fast
growing and dynamic online sports
betting market The acquisition will

be earnings enhancing (excluding
amortisation of iIntangible assets) in the
first full year post acquisition (2012/13)

The percentage of revenue from
regulated markets Is also expected

to Increase significantly over the
coming year as countries introduce
online gaming legislation Two of our
largest markets, Spain and Greece
which account for 27% of the Group's
revenue, have passed laws regulating
their markets from the beginning of
January 2012 In addition, several of
the other smaller markets in which

we operate are moving quickly in the
same direction The Group 1s currently
paying tax in Spain and intends to pay
tax in Greece when the bill is finally
passed into law The Group expects to
apply for a hcence in both countries

Based on our expenence In the regulated
Australian market, while in the short
term regulation and the implementation
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of the associated tax regimes are
expected to reduce profitability, there

1S an opportuntty to grow profits in the
medium term despite the greater cost
base The opportunities represented

by the increased ability to advertise,
improved trustworthiness from being
licensed and better payment processing
efficiency, combined with an existing
strong brand presence, provide a
platfarm for medium term profit growth
In the Australian case 1t took three years
to recover profitability with the high
growth rates experienced durng this
period continuing up to the present time

The rollout of the Group’s mobile phone
offering has been very encouraging
since 1ts launch last year Actives now
account for 15% of total customers

In our largest markets The rollout has
gathered momenturn in the last six
months with a total of 11 countries

now covered The take up of the mobile
product 1s expected to continue to grow
significantly over the next three years

as smart phone and tablet penetration,
a key driver of uptake, is expected to
exceed 50% in the markets we serve

Finally, | am pleased to announce that
the Board has proposed a final dvidend
of 11p {2010 11p) This brings the total
dividend for the year to 1 7p (2010 1 6p),
an increase of 6% year on year, and
reflects the considerable progress the
Group has made recently If approved
by shareholders the dividend will be
payable on 12 January 2012 to ordinary
shareholders reqistered as of the close
of business on 16 December 2011

MIIAYIAAQ
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Business fundamentals

Geographic diversity

The world’s best online betting service
with markets in 28 countries and over
700,000 active customers worldwide




Global strategy, local execution
Qur customers across the world
live and breathe sport and our
ability to offer a global service, that
reflects their culture and passions,
ts a cornerstone of our business

Betting behaviour 1s different around
the world In South American cultures
they bet less frequently but the stakes
are higher in Nordic countries bets are
smaller, more considered Ice Hockey 1s
only popular in Russia and other Eastern
European countries and the Europeans
are ardent basketball fans Our skill

lies in understanding and reflecting
these different sporting cultures in

the 28 countries where we operate

A leading international player

We are a major force in Europe handlng
around 79 million bets during the

year from over 400,000 active sports
enthusiasts Horseraang fans dominated
the buoyant Australian market, placing
part of the 29 million bets In Austraha
and following the Centrebet acquisition,
Sportingbet will be the leading player

In this fast-paced market increasing

our football and internet coverage

We are making goed inroads m markets
where traditional betting routes are not
well-established, alowng the internet
to become the de facto standard

from the start Football 1s a national
obsession in emerging markets — Asia,
South America and South Africa in
particular - making these attractive
long-term prospects for growth
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Reducing risk

The depth and breadth of our
geographic cover spreads our econonic
risk, diversifies our exposure to high
profile matches and spreads the load
on our systems as activity moves across
the different time zones around the
globe It delivers economies of scale
and puts our brand in front of crca
50,000 active players every day
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Overview

Group Chief Executive's Q&A

Andrew Mclver,

Group Chief Executive,
discusses the key events
of the year and looks
forward to 2012

How would you summarnise
Sportingbet’s year?

Despite economic pressure m two of
our biggest markets, Greece and Span,
we delivered a robust performance

and hit our profit target of £38 1m We
benefited from a good performance in
Australia and our Emerging Markets — a
clear demonstration of the benefits of
having a geographically diverse business

| was pleased that we finally settled
with the US Department of Justice In
September 2010 This has been a long
and arduous process so It was good to
reach a conclusion and give shareholders
certanty on the potential hability We
could now re-enter the US, subject to
the prevailing regulation, if we felt it
was appropriate to do so More recently
the successful acquisition of Centrebet,
secured our market position in the
buoyant Australian market and gave

a welcome boost to performance

How will the Centrebet acquisition
generate shareholder value?

The acquisition of Centrebet brings a
number of benefits Firstly, it consolidates
our position as the leading fixed

odds bookmaker in the fast growing
Australian market and 1t puts us in

prime position to benefit from any

future regulation changes in online
casino, poker and in running products

Secondly, we will be able to extend
our capabiiities in the wider sports
and nternet arena where Centrebet
1s particularly strong, complementing
our leading presence in horseracing
and telephone betting

Finally, we expect to delver significant
cost savings as we merge cperatrons and
this Integration 1s progressing well so far




How do you view increased
regulation in your markets?

Very posttively! We welcome regulation
because 1t provides certanty over
revenues and profit streams Our
experience in Australia suggests that
after an initral profit hit as we began

1o pay tax, within three years, profits
recovered and growth returned This
demonstrates the positive impact of
being able to market products more
widely and with the acquisition of
Centrebet, we have taken a major step
along the reguiatory path in that market

We are following moves towards
regulation in Spain and Greece closely
and expect this trend to continue -
lock at the developments in Italy and
even Germany We meet extensively
with licensing authorities to put our
views forward — they are often well
recelved - and we are very happy to
contribute to the regulatory debate

What i1s unique about Sportingbet’s
customer proposition?

I think the clue 15 1n the name! We are
focused on delivering an industry leading
sports betting proposition built on our
fast growing in running product, an
unrivalled selection of bets and a well
thought-out customer engagement
model We expect our staff to have a
passion for sport and support almost
anything sporting This 1s underpinned
by a significant investment in customer
service We recruit multi-hingual staff
and train them 1o understand betting
and how our products work and

even to acquire another language,

if they want to extend their skills

Why 1s in running betting so popular
and what 1s its impact on revenue?
in running betting took off as soon

as 1t became technically possible
because it dramatically increases the
level of involvement in a sports event,
maintaining the excitement throughout
From the constraints of the win, lose,
draw, starting point, we now offer up
to 200 possible bets during a match
From our point of view, we have seen
revenues for our m play product rise to
67% of European amounts wagered
within a very short period of time

Do you see mobile betting as a key
area of growth?

Yes, certanly Mobile currently represents
about 15% of our actives and this

Is growing at a steady 150% year

on year There are some key market
drivers dictating pace and momentum

In ‘new technologies’ in general

Smart phone penetration and flat

data packages are growing strongly

and demographics are working In our
favour In addition, with the advent of
platforms like Google, PPC, Facebook
and the Apple App Store, who have

all recently begun to regulate, mohile
accessibihty and activity 1s set to Increase
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What will management focus

on over the next few years?
Customer retention remains key

to the future so we will continue
Investing in our products to give the
customer a ncher, more rewarding
expertence, alongside expanding
our mobile capabilities

In the short-term, bedding in Centrebet
will be a key priority alongside ensuring
we compete effectively in the newly
regulated markets like Spain and Greece
and keep a watching brief on other
countnes on the requlatory path

Growth will remam top of the agenda
as we expand our international presence
but this will be combined with an
increased focus on cost management

as we tackle the challenge of the

harsh economtc conditions facing
European markets together with the
incoming cuts that regulation brings

MIIAH3AO
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Business fundamentals
Best-in-class products

Offering sports fans everywhere an
unrivalled range of betting opportunities
every minute of every hour of every day




Sportsbook

Representing 71% of our revenues, this
15 where we lead the field with 8,000
different betting opportunities every
single day Football tops the populanty
league but Tennis and Basketball each
now represent 4% of amounts wagered

in play

Now accounting for 67% of our
sportbook stakes, i play has captured
the imagination of sporting fans, adding
up to 200 live betting opportunities

to raise the exatement of the game
Customers can now bet cn who will
get the next corner, free-kick, throw-
in, goal kick and card Our unique,
in-house technology means we can run
over 40 simultaneous in play markets
at any given tme on a single game

Live streaming

Over 8,500 premium events are now
avidly watched by our customers across
the world (with the exception of those
based tn the UK and Scandinavia),
engaging them n the live game as they
bet on an extensive range of events from
European, Asian and South Amernican
football to horseracing, basketball,
snocker, darts and many others

ParadisePoker com

With up to 10,000 concurrent players,
ParadisePoker com Is one of the world's
best known online poker rooms The
software 1s run by leading gambling
software specialist, G-Tech G2, on the
International Poker Network (“IPN") Our
flagship promotion, the ParadisePoker
Tour Is now In its second season,
attracting poker aficilonados from

all over Europe to sell-out events
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Casino

We offer over 300 games from industry-
leading games providers that include
roulette, blackjack, slots and live dealer
tables Our live dealer casino from the
picneer of wdeo-streamed live dealer
gaming, Evolution, includes local
language dealers putting us at the
cutting edge of the online casno market
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Overview

Key performance indicators

Key performance indicators (“KPIs")
enable us to understand what 1s
driving our financial performance,
and give us a better understanding
of how customers are engaging

with us

Number of sports bets

The number of sports bets 15 a2 simple
KPI showing us how many bets are
placed during a given period We can
then break these results down to track
number of bets per active, per country
and per product Such analysis allows us
to monitor engagement, ensuring our
customer interaction 1s second to none

Europe and Emerging Markets
million

Sports bets have seen a steady
Increase year on year as a result of
our ¢continual improvement of our
product offering, especially in play,
combined with an increase in our
mvestment in both marketing across
all our European domams and
investrnent in motule betting

Australia million

Australia has seen a significant increase
in sports bets numbers as the benefits of
mobile betting, TV advertising and other
marketing campaigns were implemented
post the relaxation on advertising
regulations in September 2008

At Sportingbet, our Board of Directors
monitor a series of selected customer
KPIs to ensure that we as a company
are doing everything in our power to
make our shareholder’s investment
worthwhile

Percentage of sports net gaming
revenue (“NGR")

NGR 15 the amount retained by Sportingbet
from bets placed by our customers net of
promotional bonuses Being able to see our
NGR percentage year on year for each of
our indivtdual products allows us to make
decisions on how best to develop these
products and the customer experience

Europe and Emerging Markets miltion

Our world class trading team has
continued to provide an industry
leading net gaming revenue percentage
across Europe and Emerging Markets
Therr expertise, combined with our

sole ownership of our technology sets
us apart from the competition

Australia %

The shift in numbers over the last
four years reflects the move from
telephone to internet and mobile
betting m the Australian market This
move has brought wath 1t a large and
diverse base of lower stake bettors

As internet and mobile operations have
taken over the majority of the Australian
business, 1t 15 no surprise that sports

net gaming revenue percentage has
increased, moving the Australian business
away from its traditional higher, but fess
frequent, staking telephone customers, to
more low but frequent staking bettors




Sports yield per active

A good indicator of how much our
customers bet and the amount of
profit we make once therr winnings
have been paid Essentially, sports
yield 1s the net gaming revenue per
active sports betting customer

Europe and Emerging Markets £

As the in play product develops we
find our customers are more loyal to
our brand They are more engaged,
they stay ionger on our website and
the frequency of therr betting has

increased The combination of all these

factors has resulted in a year on year

ncrease N sports yield per active across

Europe and the Emerging Markets,
and will continue to improve as we
add more in play events and markets
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Active sports customers

Thus 1s simply the number of
customers placing at least one real-
money sports bet (n the penod

Austraha

The rise in active sports customers 15

a measure of our success at recruiting
and retaining customers The significant
increase n 2011 reflects the benefits

of TV advertising which began in the
second half of the 2009-10 financial year,
along with the accessibility created by
improvements in both online and mobile

M3IIAHIAD
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Business fundamentals
Building on our
core strengths

A powerful combination of in-depth
market knowledge and our bespoke IT
platform gives us the competitive edge




Wide geographical spread

Our ability to spread our risk across
multipte territonies net only reduces
our economic and trading exposure
but also gives us economies of
scale as we capture the rising
global passion for international
sporting events and iconic teams

An industry-leading trading team
Underpinning our performance is the
best risk management team In the
business over 100 specialists who
deliver industry leading margins
Highly respected for their knowledge,
they bring experience, creativity

and inspiration to our game

Unrque trading technology

Owning our core technology gives us
the agility to respond to changes In
markets and regulations at the pace/
speed we dictate Developed in-house
over a number of years, our technology
15 unigue and enables us to trade 24/7
across 28 countries simultaneously

Strong brand awareness

One of our most valuable assets, our
brand awareness 1s well ahead of the
pack In our key markets Australia,
Spain and Greece Supported by
Innovative sponsorship deals and blue
chip partnerships, we continue to nvest
in our brand to drive customer loyalty,
attract new people to betting and lower
the cost of customer acquisition
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Award winning customer service
Winning the prestigious Gold award

for the best medium-sized call centre
EMEA, 1n the Contact Centre World
awards for 2011, puts our 180-strong
customer service team firmly 1n a league
of their own Based in Dublin, they
support customers in 28 countries 24
hours a day, 7 days a week, 365 days

a year, in 34 different languages

Regulatory expertise

Licensing regimes around the world
are evolving and our dedicated team
contributes to the regulatory debate
They ensure we are primed and
ready to exploit the opportunities
that emerge as standards change -
putting us in pole positton to

move into new markets swiftly
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Overview

Regulation in brief

The speed of regulation has increased
dramatically in the last twelve months

This time last year, operators were
reeling from the regulation of the
French market The introduction of

a new tax regime together with our
low market share and the cost of the

IT work required to obtain a licence in
France, led us to conclude that it was
economically unviable and we therefore
chose to withdraw from the French
market in May 2010 Since then we have
blocked all services to French citizens

Italy was next with its updated gambling
bill permutting a number of non-

Italian bookmakers to obtain licences

to operate online In July 2011 italy
extended its licensable offerings to
include cash ring games for poker and
other casino games Whilst the techmcal
requirements are unique and complex,
the basic economics of the approach
are heading in the nght direction for
both operators and customers alike

Since then we have seen both Spain and
Greece publish gambling bills, although
they are still yet to 1ssue licences Spain
1s due to start its hcence application
process in November 2011 with the first
licences expected duning December As
for Greece, we await the announcement
of the new hcensing regime, amidst
news that tax may be payable during
the period prior to this announcerment

Further North, and we had high hopes
for regulation in Denmark Unfortunately,
the process has recently been postponed
pending input from the EU Commussion
We expect a decision imminently

We are confident that i the new
financial year we will have licences
in Denmark, ltaly and Spain We will
continue operating in a regulated
Greek market with our successfut
Greek business however 1t 15
unclear if the Greek regulator will
have resolved its licencing process
during this financial year

The European Union recently
published a “Green Paper” which
calted on all Member States in the
EU to constder all the potenttal
issues In relation to online gambling,
including a form of harmomsation

Given the timescales involved in
implementing this Green Paper compared
with the rate at which EU members

are moving towards requlation, such
harmonisation 15 unlikely to occur In

the short-term, and the most likely

trend to continue is for junsdictions

te introduce licensing regimes which

may or may not be tempered by
European Commussion intervention

Here in the UK the government
announced (in July 2011) its intention to
proceed with plans regarding a system
for the regulation of remote gambhing
in the UK This will also look at whether
operators who advertise in the UK
should face new regulatory requirements
- which would attract consequential
Iicence fees — to ensure a more even
financial treatment of both UK and non-
UK operators who target this market

Further afield and in Australia we
have begun to see a growing trend to
impose product fees (e g race fields
and sporting fixtures) which essentially
add an additional tax to that paid by
the operator in the state in which the
operator 1s icensed We continue our
discussions regarding the provision

of our other products (casino, games
and poker) as well as in play which
remain prohibited in Australia

The United States continue to prohibit
online gambling Following our
settlement with the Department of
Justice in September 2010, we believe
we can now draw a line under our
previous activities in the United States

As for Asta, we have no operations or
activities due to the prohibitive regulatory
regimes in many Asian countries

The Sportingbet Group continues

to provide its services only from
junsdictions where 1s 1t licensed and
regulated, and therefore the position
in its place of supply (and where its
requlator and applicable local laws
deern the gambling transaction to
take place) 1s explicitly legal

In order to provide our worldwide
gambhing service, the Sportingbet Group
currently maintains licences in Alderney,
Antigua and Barbuda, Australia, Curagao,
Malta, South Afnca and the UK




Spain represents one
of our largest markets
accounting for 13% of
net gaming revenue
With the passing of a
new online gambling
bill earler this year, we
expect the application
and licensing process
to commence In
November 2011

A more detailed review of how
regulation has impacted our
business over the last twelve
months 15 given in Regulatory
Developments on pages 45 to 47
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Case Study — Spain

We currently find ourselves in a
transition period between the
passing of the parliamentary bill
in July and the award of licences
before Christmas During this
period we continue to operate
in Spain with the consent of
the regulator, providing we pay
25% gross profit tax during

this period Failure to pay this
tax would invalidate any hcence
apphcation later in the year

The Spanish regulator I1s taking
an approach between that of
France and Denmark with a 25%
gross profit tax on fixed odds
betting Sports betting is allowed
with an approved catalogue

of markets Poker, roulette,
backgammon and baccarat are
also all allowed Slots, lottery and
scratch cards are not allowed

Whilst there 1s no certainty on
the overall impact of regulation
on Spanish profitability in the
short-term, we are confident that
the Sportingbet Group will be
able to overcome the immediate
INCreases In operating costs

from both tax and increased
marketing activittes as we have
proven In the Australian market

M3IIAYIAQ
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Business fundamentals
Building from external
growth drivers



Smart phone take up

The take up of our mobile product

15 expected to continue to grow
significantly over the next three years
as smart phone and tablet penetration
15 expected to exceed 50% m the
markets we serve Worldwide 3G
subscriptions were above 900 million
in 2010 as consumers continued to
demand anytime, anywhere access
to apphcations and services

Broadband penetration

Our growth strategy continues to take
advantage of ever increasing global
broadband penetration, allowing
customers to benefit frorm improved
connection speeds With data travelling
at a faster rate, the user expernence

15 enhanced and product innovation
can take advantage of improvements
to the distribution channel
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Global sports

Sports have now become established
as global brands, as individual

teams, leagues and sports become
supported in areas well outside

their traditional heartlands

The English Football Premer
League now broadcasts in over 200
terntonies, with a global audience
of around 500 million people

Confidence in internet transactions
The rnise in secure online transactions,
reflected in the continued increase

In internet banking, onhne shopping
and other ecommerce activities

leaves us well placed as the betting
community becomes increasingly
accustomed with the internet as a
purchasing tool in everyday hfe
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Business review
Overview

This has been a year of significant
progress for the Group both in terms
of financia!l performance and corporate
developments We have delivered a
strang set of financial results with
EBITDA increasing 11% to £51 4m The
benefits of operating across a broad
geographical base were demonstrated
with strong growth in our Emerging
Markets division, Australia and some of
our European territones, offsetting the
economi¢ weakness m Greece and Spain

With the acquisition of Centrebet in
Australia and the passing of regulations
in two of our largest markets,

Greece and Spain, Sportingbet 1s

now well positioned to maximise the
European opporturities avallable to

it as the global online gaming market
continues to develop and regulate

Our overall strategy of providing a first
class sports betting product offering
customers an unprecedented number
of betting opportunities at all times of
the day, remains unchanged This is
underpinned by our propnetary best-
In-class in play offer, superb trading
team and focus on gving customers
what they want espeaally 1in new
growth areas such as mobile

The Group has had a sold start to
the new financial year with NGR in
the first two months 17% above
the same penod last year

Sportingbet Group

Sportingbet I1s one of the world’s leading
online gaming operators with divisions
focused on Europe (which includes
Emerging Markets in Afnica and South
America) and Australla The European
operation 1s based in the Channel Islands,
operating under a licence provided

by the Alderney Gambling Control
Commussion This ts supported by an
operational centre in Dublin providing
customer services and administrative
support The Group's Australian division
15 based in Darwin operating under

a hcence provided by the Northern
Terntory Government In total the

Group now employs over 600 people

Betting on sports is at the heart of the
Sportingbet business, accounting for
71% (2010 69%) of Group gross gaming
revenue The growth in sports betting
of 4 6% has primarnly been driven by
bets placed whilst the game is "In play’,
which accounts for 67% of European
amounts wagered Our in play product
has been growing strongly at 24% per
annum over the last three years and
with an in play margin of 9 7% (2010
9 3%), we continue to be the ndustry
leader In addition, in play traded in
450 out of the 500 distinct football
divisions we offered in 2010/11 and
we currently trade between 800-900
football matches in play per week




Although football is our core product,
accounting for 42% of gross gaming
revenue, the Group ofifers betting
markets on all major global sports

We have successfully implemented our
internally developed football and tennis
denvatives programmes and taken our
In play service on these two sports to a
higher level of differentiation both on
pricing and market types As an example
we have implemented our internally
developed football instants market,
offering next corner, next free kick and
next throw-m on more than 75% of all
m play football matches offered The
breadth of our sports coverage with
football, tennis, and basketball, through
to local sports such as ce hockey and
handball 1s now firmly established

While sports betting remains the

focus of the business, we provide

a complete range of other gaming
products to our customers including
casino, games and poker Casino and
games contnbute 21% of Group gross
gaming revenue whilst poker makes up
the remaiming 8% These products are
not offered to our Australian customers
due to regulatory constraints

The Group achteved an operating
margin of 18 5% (excluding exceptional
1tems, share option charge and
amortisation of intangible assets)
during the year which was above the
pnor year's 17 1% due to savings in
payment processing and staff costs
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Outlook

The Group has had a sold start to the
new financial year with NGR in the first
two months 17% above the same peniod
last year and in line with expectations

With regulatory change well under way
in Europe we are confident that the
increased advertising opportunities,
improved payment pracessing and stable
business platform this provides will drive
profitable growth in the medium-term

Whilst the economic outlook remains
challenging, our diversified business
model across the different economic
cycles of Europe, Australia and

South Amenica gives us confidence
for the current financial year
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Europe and Australia

Europe

The European business (incorporating
the financial results for the Emerging
Markets Division} performed well in
difficult ecanomic conditions The
gross amount wagered (pre bonus
adjustment} on sports increased by

0 8% to £1,184 Om {2010 £1,174 9m),
generating gross gaming revenue of
£118 9m (2010 £121 4m) down 2 1%
Underlying gross gaming revenue at
constant currency increased by 1 5%

Two of our largest markets Greece and
Spain were affected by particularly
challenging economic conditions and as
a result we saw amounts wagered fall by
22% and 2% respectively This impacted
the number of sports actives, which fell
by 10% However, by providing markets
to bet on every minute of every day we
saw the number of sports bets placed
rse by 4 1% to 78 9m (2010 75 7m)
and the number of bets per customer
Increased to 184 (2010 159) Although
the average bet size decreased margmnally
to £15 01 (2010 £15 51}, yield per sports
custorner increased from £254 to £277

Once agamn the European business
produced an industry leading sports
margin of 10 0% (2010 10 3%)

In play betung in our European
business accounted for 67% of

the value of bets placed during the
year and amounts wagered on live
betting increased 9 0% year on year
generating total NGR of £76 4m and
equating to a gross margin of 3 7%

2011 2010 +/-
Sports actives 429,154 477,234 -10%
Sports bets 78 9m 757m 4 1%
Sports bets/active 184 159 16 0%
Sports bet size £1501 £15 51 -32%
Yield per sports active £277 £254 9 0%
Casinc and games bets 5814m 499 6m 16 0%
Casinoc and games bet size £2 43 £2 82 -14 0%

The Emerging Markets division again
saw strong NGR growth up 56% driven
by our Brazihan operation and our
regulated South African operation

The continued increase in smart phone
penetration has driven mobile usage
to an average of around 15% i our
more mature domains, with the take up
varying widely from country 1o country
Those customers using smart phones
tend to spend more across both online
and mobile channels Next year will
see the introduction of Mobile Casino
and Games, which 1s expected to
incrementally increase mobile revenues
by the end of the financial year

Regulation offers new marketing
opportunities in the mobile marketing
space as Google's Pay Per Chick, Apple’s
App Store and social media sites such
as Facebook with their strong mokbile
following (44% of online users/350m
mobile users) open up ther doors

to betting and gaming companies
where they were previgusly closed

Casinoc and games gross revenue fell
by 1 5% to £47 5m (2010 £48 2m)
Our industry leading product range
led to a 16% increase in the number
of bets, but the difficult economic
conditions in markets such as Spain
and, in particular, Greece caused a
14% decrease in the average bet size

Poker gross revenue decreased to £17 7m
(2010 £217m) n challenging market
conditions, despite the closure late in our
financial year of the US facing businesses
of some of our competitors Our casino
and games and competitive poker
product remain an essential part of our
offering, creating a ‘one stop shop’ which
has proven to increase customer loyalty




Australia

Gross amounts wagered 1in Australia
mncreased by 11% from £745 3m 1o
£825 Om resulting In a pre-tax margin
of £50 Om {2010 £45 5m} Gambling
taxes in Australia amounted to £9 8m
In the penod (2010 £10 5m) After
accounting for these taxes, the post tax
margin increased by 15% from £35 Om
to £40 2m After bonuses, NGR increased
by 11% from £33 6m to £37 2m

The sports margin In Australia was
well above the long term average
in the year at 4 9% (2010 4 7%}
as certan horseracing results
favoured the bookmaker

In fine with our strategy of expanding
the higher margin internet business,
the online operations performed very
strongly with the number of actives up
64% and the number of bets up 53%
The internet business now accounts for
77% of the gross margin compared to
52% In the prior year Not surprisingly,
the traditional high roller telephone
business was affected by difficult
economic conditions causing active
telephone customer numbers to decrease
by 27% with the amount wagered

on the telephone down by 20%

OQur Australian mobile platform was
successfully launched last year The
proprietary owned product continued
to perform strongly this year with
NGR up substantially to over 5% of
dmwisional NGR As in other countries
the mobile product 1s increasing

the frequency of customer bets and
producing a higher margin as it tends
to have been used to supplement
existing betting opportunities
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2011 2010 +/-
Internet
Sports bets 26 4m 17 3m +53%
Sports bet/active 341 326 +4 5%
Sports bets size A326 At28 -92%
Sports margin (post tax) 6 8% 6 5% +4 0%
Telephone
Sports bets 14m 16m -10%
Sports bet/active 77 107 -27%
Sports bets size Asd27 A$535 -20%
Sports margin (post tax} 25% 3 5% -27%

In common with other Australian
based gaming operators, Sportingbet
has made a claim to recover GST
from the Australian Tax Office
relating to overseas wagers Based on
recent court judgements the Group
believes that the AUS$9 1m (£5 6m)
being claimed will be recovered

Many of the product fee issues created
when the Australian states liberalised
therr regulations in September 2008
have been satisfactorily resolved to
date However New South Wales fees
remain the subject of a court case
which 15 expected to be resclved in
fate 2011 As Sportingbet has ahways
paid the required fees, a finding in our
favour would result in a repayment

of around AUS$13m (£10 4m} and
probably lower on-going fees

The acquisition of Centrebet was
completed on 31 August 2011 followtng
the year end Although 1t 1s relatively
early in the integration process the signs
are very promising Qur intention remains
to keep both brands operating on one
platform, thereby targeting maximum
revenue upside through diversification
whilst also extracting the largest
possible cost savings from synergres
The combined business has around

one third of the Austrahian internet
gambling market which 1s requlated,
taxed and fast growing In addition
there 1s the medium term possibifity of
significantly increasing the profitability
of the company if the Australian
Government regulate to allow betting

in play, online casino, games and poker
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Corporate social responsibility

The Company’s objective 1s to provide a ‘protected
entertainment environment’ in which our customer care
programmes give responsible adults the confidence of

knowing that therr money is safe, whilst providing the

Company with the confidence that all reasonable steps
are being taken to protect the vulnerable

Social Responsibility Committee

The Committee s chared by Non-
Executive Director, Brian Harris, and

its other members are Non-Executive
Director Sean O'Connor, and the
Company's General Counsel, Daniel
Tahsman, who also acts as the
Committee’s Secretary Sean O'Connor
has resigned as a Owrector from the Board
(and from his committee memberships,
of which the Social Responsibility
Cormmittee 15 one) with effect from 16
December 2011 The Board intends to
review the composition of all committees
(including the Sccial Responsibility
Committee) following the release of

the Company's financial year results on
5 October 2011 The Committee met
five times during the last financial year
The Head of Compliance and the Group
Head of Human Resources attend its
meetings and the Group Chief Executive
15 appraised of the Committee's work

at least twice in the course of the year

The Committee Is responsible for
reviewing the Company’s policies on
corporate socal responsibility and
stimulating Group-wide best practice
on matters including age verification,
fraud, money laundering, responsible
gaming, self-exclusion and privacy

Approprnate recommendations are
made to the Company's Board
Terms of Reference can be viewed
on www sportingbetplc com and are
available in writing on request

Customers

As a service business, the core of
Sportingbet’s policies on social
responsibility lies in our approach

to our customers All employees are
committed to winning and retaining
the trust and loyalty of our customers

The guiding principle behind
Sportingbet’s polictes can be
summarised as ‘Know Your Customer’
Procedures to achieve this mean

far more than merely collecting
documentary evidence of people’s
identities 1t 15 about understanding therr
indwvidual requirements, appreciating
concerns and closely researching

therr patterns of behaviour

Knowing one's customers and creating
profiles of their activities and preferences
ieads to targeted and appropriate
marketing strategies This lies at the
heart of the Company's Customer
Relationship Management polices

The way different customers spend
money and what they spend it on
prowides an overall understanding of
their motivation For almaost all of the
Company's customers online gambling
Is an entertainment pastime, and
Sportingbet's products, promotions and
culture make their relationship with the
Company an enjoyable experience

It 1s the small minority, however, who
may be potential fraudsters, underage
gamblers or problem players that result
in the need for comprehensive systems
and procedures to protect the Company
and, often, the customer Of course,
nothing can ever be entirely secure
against determined offenders, but the
Company commits much time and
investment to finding organisational and
software driven approaches to excluding
the vulnerable and identifying fraud

With multi-player environments such as
poker, the Company I1s particularly vigilant
about the nsk of collusion or irregular
fund movements between participants
Systems have been designed to highlight
unusual or concerning patterns of play

Sportingbet has selected URU and
Anstotle as independent third party
suppliers to provide online age and
identity venfication services Customers’
registration details are venfied against
third party suppliers’ databases to
ensure that they are over 18 years old
These databases utilise data harvested
from a variety of global governmental
and corporate offictal records contaiming
known individuals aged over 18 only

Employees

The Board of Sportingbet is of the firm
belief that the Company's success Is
due to the quality and commitment

of 1ts workforce The Company's
employee management priorities,
including its remuneration strategies,
are based on recruiting and retaining
the best people in the industry and on
encouraging working practices that
improve productivity, reduce costs,
develop talent and give job satisfaction

The Board recognises the need for
communication with employees at

every level Weekly sales notes and all
quarterly results announcements are
arculated to employees and copies of
the Annual Report and Accounts are
also made available The Company

1s commuitted to developing ongoing
commurication with all of its employees
This ts achieved through a vanety of
channels, including the Group's intranet,
to ensure that everyone 1s informed of
the Group's progress and recognises

the key roles that they, as employees,
play in Sportingbet’s success

Sportingbet has conducted two
employee engagement surveys to date,
n February 2010 and February 2011,
measuring employee engagement across
ten key areas specific to Spartingbet




The results of these surveys are used
throughout the year in order to raise
Sportingbet's engagement with staff

The Group 15 committed to a policy of
equal opportunity in matters relating

to employment, traiing and career
development of employees and 15
opposed to any form of less favourable
treatment afforded on the grounds of
age, disability, sex, marnital status, sexual
ornientation, nationality, race or religion

Heatlth and Safety Policy
Sportingbet 1s committed to providing
safe and healthy working conditions
for our employees and has adopted a
health and safety policy to implement
this ambition The policy covers

» 1dentifying hazards in the workplace,
assessing the risks associated with
them, and implementing appropriate
preventive and protective measures,

» safeguarding the health and safety
of wisitors, contractors and of any
members of the general pubhc who
could be affected by our activities,

= ensuring the workplaces under our
control are maintamed in a safe
condrtion, without nisks to health,
and with safe means of access,

* providing and maintaining safe
equipment with procedures in place
for reporting faulty equipment,

* providing all employees with
sufficient information, instruction
and training to enable them to work
safely and to raise standards of
health and safety in the workplace
for themselves and their colleagues,

¢ establishing and implementing
safe methods of work,

+ mamtaining procedures to be followed
in the event of an emergency, and

* ensuring adequate resources are
made available to fulfil thus policy
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The Board 1s ultimately responsible

for health and safety Speciic local
managers have delegated responsibilities
for the day to day operation of the health
and safety policy in their own locatrons

Group Finance Director im Wilkinson 15
responsible for ensuring compliance with
this policy and for health and safety in al!
the Caompany’s offices He Is competent
to advise and assist the Board in the
discharge of therr duties under this policy

Trade and chanitable organisations
The Company recognises the
cbligation upon the gaming Industry to
demonstrate its commitment to self-
regulation The Company is supportive
of the role that the industry’s trade
associations can play in this regard
and Sportingbet 15 an active member
of the Remote Gambling Association
(RGA) holding a seat on its Executive
Commitiee and being represented

on various RGA sub-committees

The Company has signed up to the
RGA's Codes on Social Responsitility
and Age Verification, the provisions
of which the Company endorses

Sportingbet invests time and resources
in meeting and communicating with
officers and politicians of governments,
and national online gaming licensing
authorities The Company’s management
remains committed to playing its part in
promoting the value of legistation that
will fead to a regulated approach to the
industry, not least as a mecharism for
protecting the vulnerable elements of
society from unscrupulous operators
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Corporate social responsibility

Recognising that some customers may
be affected by gambling dependency,
the Company has continued to

provide funding in the UK to The
GREaT Foundation (formerly known

as the Responsibility in Gambling
Trust) The Company has also made
donations to the following arganisations
and charties the Island Academy
international School In Antigua, HERQS
(Homing Ex-Racehorses Organisation
Scheme), Friends of Israel Sport Centre
for the Disabled and sponsorship of

a Lords Taverners’ celebrity cricket
event in the Channel Islands

Community haison

In order to encourage a socally
ntegrated work environment, the
Company has placed an emphasis on
investing In the local communities in
which 1t operates In Guernsey, where
the Company’s primary licence and
operations are based, the Company has
invested a significant amount of time
and money into the local community,
including sponsonng the Guernsey
Football Club, the Ristng Stars Fund
that supports Guernsey's elite athletes,
Guernsey Table Tennis, the Channe!
Islands Athletics Club and local events
such as the Sportingbet Channel
Islands Sports Personality of the Year
Awards and the Inaugural Guernsey
Community Foundation Awards which
celebrates individuals and companies that
contribute to the Guernsey community

In Antigua, where the Group has held
sports betting and garming licences for
many years, the Company continues
to donate a significant sum of money
to the Island Academy International
School to fund bursaries for a number
of less privileged focal children

In the United Kingdom, Sportingbet
supports the Home Qffice funded
scheme, Tackling Knives Action
Programme In the West Midlands, this
programme has been implemented
through “Braveheart” — a scheme which
takes youth leaders, policemen, former
gang members and community workers
into the Scottish Islands for a week

to improve therr leadership skills, self
relance and confidence In conjunction
with the Wolverhampton Wanderers

FC Community Trust, Sportingbet has
sponsored three of its employees to act
as members and to join youth leaders on
this scheme, and 1s working with West
Midlands police and community groups
mn the area t¢ encourage other companies
to join the "Braveheart” programme

Environmental management
Sportingbet, as with many online
businesses, causes a relatively low
level of environmental damage
Nevertheless, the Company monitors
its effects on the environment

Where an environmental impact does
occur, for e g through transport and
certain areas of consumption and
waste management, the Company

1s committed to bringing about
continuous iImprovement in reducing
its adverse environmental impact

Sportingbet’s environmental

policy includes

» complying with alf relevant
national and regional legislation
as a minimum standard,

« complying with codes of practice
and other requirements such as
those specified by regulators,

« promoting practical energy efficiency
and waste minimisation measures,

* requiring each office to recycle its
paper waste,

* encouraging the use of public
transport and environmentally
friendly modes of transport
where this Is practicable, and

* providing a shared inter-office
IT network and communications
technology that reduces the
need for busimess travel

In order to achieve this Sportingbet

* ensures employees are trained
and motivated to conduct their
activities In an environmentally
responsible manner,

¢ reviews the policy on a regular
basis to take into account
any new developments in
environmental management, and

= allocates sufficient management
resources 10 ensure effective
implementation of the
environmental policies

Fachues for recycling office waste

are In place at our offices During
2010/2011 our offices recycled waste
paper, spent toner and Ink cartridges,
obsolete computer hardware,

printers and mobile phenes

The Head of Compliance s responsible
for the implementation and menitoning
of the environmental policy The
environmental pohcy 1s reviewed by
the Soaial Responsibility Committee
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Trading summary

Amounts wagered for the year ended 31
July 2011 grew by 4 2% to £2,053 9m
(2010 £1,971 3m), earning net gaming
revenue ("NGR") of £204 Om (2010
£207 5m), down 1 7% on the prior

year At constant currency and taking
Into account our exit from France and
Norway In the prior year, NGR was

up 1 2% on a like for ke basis

Amounts wagered on sports betting
in Europe {incorporating the financial
results for the Emerging Markets
diviston) grew by 0 8% to £1,174 6m
(2010 £1,165 1m), earning NGR of
£109 5m (2010 £111 6rn) down 19%
year on year On a hke for Itke basis
European sports NGR was up 3 9%

Casino and gaming contributed a
further £44 Om, and poker £13 3m,
to hoth amounts wagered and NGR
(2010 £44 9m and £17 4m)

Amounts wagered on Australian
sports betting grew by 10 5% to
£822 Om (2010 £743 9m), earning
post betting tax NGR of £37 2m
(2010 £33 6m) This growth excludes
the Centrebet acquisition which was
completed following the year end

As a percentage of amounts wagered,
the European and Australian sports
NGR were 9 3% and 4 5% respectively
(2010 9 6% and 4 5%) However,
amounts wagered and NGR are stated
after a deduction for customer bonuses
of £20 3m {2010 £18 8m} Without
the bonus deduction the equivalent
numbers would have been 10 0%

and 4 9% (2010 10 3% and 4 7%)

Costs (excluding exceptional rtems,
share option charge and amortisation)
In the year were £168 2m (2010

£172 1m), accounting for 81 5%
of total revenue (2010 82 9%}

Operating profit (hefare exceptional
itemns, share option charge and
amortisation) for the year increased
8% to £38 1m (2010 £35 4m)

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation
and amortisation (before exceptional
itemns and share option charge) increased
1% to £51 4m (2010 £46 5m)

Operating profit after the exceptional
costs of £10 8m (2010 £24 5m),
share option charge of £1 2m (2010
£2 Om) and amortisation of other
intangble assets of £1 7m (2010
£18m) was £24 4m (2010 £7 im)

Net finance cost was £0 6m
(2010 £02m)

Corporation tax increased to £3 1m
(2010 £3 Om) due to the increased
profitability of our Australian business

Exceptional costs totalled £10 8m

(2010 £24 5m} These costs relate
mostly to the acquisiion of Centrebet
international Limited and the possible
disposal of the Turkish language website

Adjusted basic earnings per share (before
exceptional items, share option charge
and amortisation) was 6 6p (2010

6 5p) Diluted earnings per share (before
exceptional items, share option charge
and amortisation) was 6 3p (2010

6 2p) Bastc Group statutory earnings

per share was 3 9p (2010 0 8p)

As at 31 July 2011, the Group had
£180 2m (2010 £58 9m) of cash and
hqusd resources on its balance sheet
After taking into account £123 6m
held in respect of the acquisition of
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Centrebet, £22 7m (2010 £18 2m)
of customer hiabilities, £4 Om (2010
£4 Om) of bank loans secured on
residential properties in the Channel
Islands and £3 1m (2010 £2 5m} of
finance leases, net cash at the penod
end stood at £26 8m (2010 £34 2m)

Treasury management

The Group’s treasury function provides

a centralised service for the provision of
finance and the management and control
of iquidity, foreign exchange and mterest
rates The function operates as a cost
centre and manages the Group’s treasury
exposure to reduce risk in accordance
with policies approved by the Board

It 1s not the policy of the Group to
trade in or enter into speculative
transactions Authorntres, procedures
and reporting responsibilities are
documented and regularly reviewed

Due to the international nature of its core
activities, the Group's reported profits,
net assets and cash flows are all affected
by foreign exchange rate movements

Operations are financed by a mixture of
retained profits, bank borrowings and
long-term loans In addrhon, various
financial iInstruments, such as trade
receivables and trade payables, arise
directly from the Group’s operations

Certain custorners in the Australian
region are allowed to place bets on
credit The Group's policy of respect of
credit risk 15 to require that appropniate
credit checks are made on potential
customers before bets are placed

and credit imits set accordingly

The Group continues to use
forward currency contracts to
manage foreign currency nisks
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Management of
principal risks

Risk governance and responsibilities
The Board has overall responsibility

for risk management and considers

the risk process as an integral

part of strategic pltanning

The Executive Directors make
recommendations on the overall approach
to risk management and identify the
principal nsks and uncertainties

that could materrally and adversely
affect the Group's ability to achieve
strategre goals, financial condition
and results of operations

The Board considers the following
Impact areas im assessing risks
« lLegal and regulatory
* Marketplace
Technology

The Audit Committee (s responsible for
assessing the scope and effectiveness

Reputation

.
* Customers
L ]
* Employees

of the process established to dentify,

assess, manage and monitor risks

Risk management process

The Board routinely monitors risks

Legal and Regulatory

The Board Is supported by executive
management personnel within the

above mentioned areas of the business

who collectively play a key role in rnisk

management and regulariy report
to the Board through the Audit
Committee The rsk management
processes are reviewed formally by
the Audrt Committee annually

Principal nsks and uncertainties

The nsks outlined here are those
principal nsks and uncertainties that the
Executive Directors consider matenal to
the Group They are not presented in
any order of prionty Additional risks and
uncertainties, not currently known to the
Directors, or that the Directors currently
consider immatenal, may also adversely
affect the Group's business, results of
operations or finangial condition

Risk

Description

Mitigation

Increasing regulation
in online gambling

The regulatory positton on online gaming is
changing rapidly, many countries are reviewing
their position, especially in Europe and are
drafting new legslation These will affect the
tax paid in many jurisdictions however it will
also have the potential to open the market

to a greater number of customers There Is

a sk that the new regulations could inhibit
revenues or result in having fo withdraw from
markets to avoid breaching regulations

We are working 1o identify countries that
are looking to mtroduce new regulations
and where possible we becormne actively
involved in shaping their new regulations
and educating them 1n the technicalities

of implementing gaming bills At the same
time we are aligning our internal processes
and infrastructure to ensure we are well
placed to meet the requirements of the new
regulatory regimes We are also monitoring
our global strategy on a country by country
basis to ensure the Group's balanced portfolio
remains 0 n the face of these changes In
addition, the Group imits its regulatory risk
frorn any one country by accepting wagers
from a large numbers of junsdictions

Risk

Description

Mitigation

Dependence on
regulatory licences

There can be no assurance that any junsdiction
m which licences are held by or on behalf

of the Group will not change its icensing
requiremenits, Including the terms and conditions
to which the licences and approvals currently
held by or on behalf of the Group are subject
tf the regulatory scheme of any jnsdiction in
which the Group operates were to change

its licensing requirements, the Group may

be required to expend significant capital or
other resources in order to comply with the
new requirements and/or may not be able

to meet the new requirements, erther or a
combination of which could have a matenal
adverse effect on the Group’s business,
financial condition and results of operations

The Group has diversified its nsk by obtamning
multiple hcences Betting activities are
licensed in Alderney, Antigua and Barbuda,
Australia, Northern Cyprus, South Africa

and the UK The Board believes the Group
has a good relatonship with the relevant
regulatory authorties but there can be no
guarantee that these licences will be renewed
or that they will not be termmated early
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Marketplace
Risk Description Mitigation
Competmon The online betting market is highly The Group closely monitors competition within
competitve The Group competes with the online gambling industry and has a long
a number of companies, some of which term approach to improving its products,
have greater fmancial, marketing and other marketing and IT infrastructure in addition
resources As a result, these companies the Group has a diversified geographical
may adopt more aggressive pricing polcies base which spreads the competitive nsk
or undertake mare extensive marketing
and advertising campaigns This may have
a negative Impact on revenues or profit
margins achieved by the Group in the
future The Group would face an mcrease
In competition sf competitors expanded or
focused more an online sports betting or if
there were new entrants in the market
Technology
Risk Description Mitigation

Dependence on
advanced information
Sﬁstems (technology
changes)

The Group's operations are highly dependent
on technology and advanced information
systems and there 15 a nisk that such
technology or systems could fail In addition
to such failure, there can be no assurance
that such technology or systems will not be
subject to damage or interruption caused by
human error, unauthorised access, computer
viruses, distnbuted denial of service (DDoS)
attacks, mcrease in volume in usage of online
services, sabotage, natural hazards or disasters
or other similarly disruptive events, induding
other security breaches, or wall be able to
support a significant increase in online traffic
or increased custorner numbers Any fallure
or disruption of, or damage to, the Group’s
technology or systems, could have a materia!
adverse effect on the Group’s business,
financial condstion or results of operations

The Group has In place data recovery and
systems recovery procedures, secunty
measures and business continuity plans in the
event of failure or disruption of, or damage
to, the Group’s technology or systems
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Technology

Risk Description

Mitigation

Over-rellance on The Group has relationships with a number
third parties of key third party suppliers who provide
products and services to the Group
Infrastructure supplters, network and
telecommunication suppliers and application
service providers are long-term partners in
providing an infrastructure which seeks to
ensure the delivery of sophisticated, high
performance transaction processing systems
However, the Group exercses little control
over many of these third party supphers
and is reliant on them to perform therr
services n accordance with the terms of
their contracts, which increases vulnerability
to problems with the products and services
they provide Any adverse event affecting
the Group's relationship with key suppliers
could have a matenal adverse effect on
the Group's reputation, business, financial
condrtion and results of operations

Customers

The Group 1s Increasing the number

of thurd party supplers to reduce the
dependency on the current suppliers and 1s
performing a number of functions internally
previously undertaken by third parties

Risk Description

Mitigation

Fraud As an online business, the Group expenences
fraudulent activity on customer accounts In
the form of deposits from stolen credit cards
and debit cards These amounts are written off
as a loss to the business Although the direct
financial impact of these transactions is small
{well under 1% of total deposits from cards),
we are at nisk of temporanly losing the ability
to process credit & debit card transactions in
some terntores f the percentage of disputed
transactions there exceeds the thresholds that
are laid down by the card schemes Losing the
ability to process card transactions can reduce
our ability to acquire and retain customers

The Group has a Risk Management
department whose role 15 10 monitor
transactions for signs of fraudulent actity,
and to carry out Know-Your-Customer
procedures Fraud detection and prevention
software is used by the Risk Management
tearn The Group sources multiple payment
service providers to mitigate the nisk of
losing any single funding channel




Customers
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Risk

Description

Mitigation

Money Laundering

Reputation

As an online business that has no face-to-face
contact with customers, the Group faces the
possibilty of reputational damage if there
was a serious inodent of a customer using
our service to carry out money laundering

or terronst financing Such an incdent could
have a damaging effect on the brand, and

on the attitudes of customers, regulators,

and business partners towards the Group

The Group's Risk Management department
monitors customer actmty for signs of
money laundering, and carnes out Know-
Your-Customer procedures, in order to
mininuse the risk of money laundering

Risk

Description

Mitigation

Brand reliance

Employees

The Group's success depends on a strong
brand and if the Group 1s not ab'e to maintain
and enhance rts brand its abiity to expand

its base of customers, advertisers and
affiliates will be impaired and its business

and aperating results will be harmed The
Directors anticipate that, as the Group’s
market becomes increasingly competitive,
maintaining and enhancing the Group's
brand may become increasingly difficult

The Directors believe that the brand identity
that the Group has developed has significantly
contributed to the success of its business

The Group spends more than 30% of net
gaming revenue on marketing and reviews
and monrtors the success of all marketing

and sponsorship expenditure The Group
Intends to continue to acquire domain

names as suitable cpportunrties arise

Risk

Description

Mitigation

Loss of key personnel
{retention

Sportingbet 1s positioned in the very
competitive B2C space Many of our
employees have skill sets which are very
attractive not only to our competitors
but In the “e* space in general

Being a relatively small organisation 1t 15 easier
to identify key retention (ssues by employee
A range of solutions are m place to manage
such nsks Interventions for specific risks
range from Braveheart type initiatives to
increased responsibilities, key projects as well
as ensunng that base pay 15 competitive

Risk Description Mitigation
Failure to attract quality | Gwen the industry sector we operate in Our Head of Resourcing has built up excellent
staff (acqmsmon) approximately 20% of potential candidates relationships with key head-hunters and

for jobs will decide the gaming sector 1s not
for them OQur business activities in Turkey,
on occasion, make us less attractive as an
employer than some of our competitors

recruitrment agencies As a result they

work hard on our behalf when looking

far candidates Even with the threat of
acquisihion many candidates see this as a
career advancing opportunity, by learning
new skills in the event of a takeover/merger

In the absence of equity we are being creative
In relation to notice penods and exclusivity
dauses to ensure offers are converted to
acceptances in the current climate
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Board of Directors

Peter Dicks

Chairman and

Non-Executive Director

Peter Dicks, aged 69, joined

the Board of Sportingbet as
Chairman in January 2000 He
resigned in September 2006 and
rejoined n February 2008 as a
result of US related matters Peter
was co-founder of Abingworth
Ple, and 1s currently a director of a
number of quoted and unquoted
companues including Graphite
Enterprise Trust PLC, Palar

Capital Technology Trust, Private
Equity investor, Mears Group

and Standard Microsystems a

US NASDAQ quoted company
Peter s also a director of Danel
Stewart and Company

Andrew Mclver

Group Chief Executive
Andrew Mctver, aged 48,
formerly Group Finance
Director, took over as Group
Chief Executive in October
2006 Andrew qualfied as a
Chartered Accountant with
Arthur Andersen Following
two years in the Corporate
Finance department at Dresdner
Kleinwort Wasserstein, he held
senior finance positions at Signet
Group Plc, Ladbrokes Group Ple
and Bnush Telecom's internet
division He was Director of
Finance with House of Fraser

Plc for four years before joining
Sportingbet in December 2001

Jim Wilkinson

Group Finance Director

Jim Wilkinson, aged 45, jorned
Sportingbet Plc as Group
Finance Director in February
2008, prior to which he held
the same positions at Johnson
Services Group pl¢ (2004-
2007) and Informa Group plc
{1998-2004) Jim qualified

as a Chartered Accountant
with Touche Ross Londan

Brian Harris

Senior Independent
Non-Executive Director
Brian Harris, aged 65 jomed
Sportingbet as a Non-Executive
Director in 2003 The founder
and senior partner of a London
law firm with an international
clientele, he has acted for foreign
governments, multi-national
corporations national airlines,
high net worth individuals and
privately owned compames He
15 actively involved in sporting
charity work for the disabled




Sean O'Connor
Non-Executive Director

Sean O'Conner aged 62, joined
Sportingbet as a Non-Executive
Director in 2000 Was acting
Charman of Sportingbet Plc from
September 2006 to February
2008 Duning the year to July
2011 he was the Chairman of
Cape PLC and Springboard
Urban He was also a director

of a number of public and
private companies including the
Graphite Enterprise Trust PLC
and Crow TV He was previously
Chairman of the Stoves Group
PLC and of MediaKey Pic

Sean O'Connor will resign
from the Board of Directors
on 16 December 2011

Nigel Payne

Non-Executive Director
Nigel Payne, aged 52 joined
Sportingbet in 2000 and 15
now a Non-Executive Director
He was Group Chref Executive
between 2001 and 2006 Nigel
was the Group Finanoal Director
of Polestar Magazines and has
held directorships at Scottish

& Newcastle and Brann Direct
Marketing Nigel 1s a Partner in
Merlin Financial Advisors LLP
and 1s a director of Mucky Pups
Childcare Limited, Better Logic
Limited, Golfbidder Limited
and Hangar8 plc Migel s a
quabfied Chartered Accountant

Nigel Payne will resign from
the Board of Directors on
16 December 2011
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Rory Macnamara
Non-Executive Director

Rory Macnamara, aged 56,
j0ned Sportingbet as a Non-
Executive Director in June

2011 Rory qualified as an ACA
with Price Waterhouse before
joiing Morgan Grenfell, later
Deutsche Morgan Grenfell, in
1981 as an mnvestment banker
Over the following 17 years

he advised chents on a wide
range of corporate finance
issues and became Head of

the Advisory/M&A division in
1995 and Deputy Chairman the
following year In 1999 Rory
Joined Lehman Brothers as Head
of UK Coverage and led teams
adwising a number of rmajor UK
and international chents In 2001
he became an independent
consultant working with Lehman
Brothers on M&A projects

and with other companies on
their business development

and financial and acquisition
strategies Besides this extensive
corporate finance expenence

he also brings to Sportingbet

a significant understanding of
public company management
from the many boards he has
joined over the last 10 years

Chns Moss

Non-Executive Director

Chnis Moss, aged 57, joined
Sportingbet as 2 Non-Executive
Director in September 2011 Chnis
has gver 25 years' marketing,
brand and product management
experence He started his
marketing career at Virgin
Atlantic in 1985 and rose 10 the
position of Marketing Director
He then joined Microtel, and
was responsible for founding
and launching the Orange
brand name Subsequent to this
rofe he joined Lloyds Bank and
TSB as Brand Director More
recently as CEQ he launched
$18118 He also runs a brand
consultancy called Famoss,

and 1s Charman of Untap it a
not-for-profit social enterprise
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Compliance

The Company recognises the importance of the principles of
good corporate governance and the Board is pleased to report
its continued commitment to achieving high standards
throughout the year The Board complies with the provisions
of the UK Corporate Governance Code (“Code"} i1ssued by the
Financial Reporting Council other than as set out below and

in the section headed "Audit Committee”

All the Non-Executive Directors {other than Nigel Payne and
Sean O’Connor) are considered by the Board 10 be independent
of management and free of any relationship which could
maternally interfere with the exercise of their independent
Judgement Giwen N:gel Payne's previous position as an
Executive Director, and the fact that Sean O'Connor has

served on the Board for more than nine years, they are not
considered to be independent as defined by the Code However,
following the Board refreshment process described in more
detall below, both have resigned as Directors with effect from
16 December 2011

Sean O'Connor's length of service related in part to the complex
regulatory environment in which the Group operates and the
1ssues assoctated with its historic US business The threat of
prosecution in the US made it more chalienging for the
Company to attract Non-Executive Directors of surtable quality
and experience generally and thus contnbuted to the length of
service of some of the Board members These issues have been
resolved with the recent settlement between the Company and
the US Department of Justice

The Board recognises that there are areas of Code non-
compliance First, that at least half of the Board i1s not currently
made up of independent Non-Executive Durectors (provision

B 1 2 of the Code), secondly, that the Nomination Committee
15 not made up of a majority of independent Non-Executive
Directors {provision B 2 1 of the Code) and thirdly, that the
Audit Committee does not consist of three independent
Non-Executive Directors {provisson C 3 1 of the Code)
Therefore, the Board has been engaged in a detailed process
with external consultants to appoint suitably qualified
independent Non-Executive Directors to the Board As a result,
Rory Macnamara was appointed to the Board with effect from
27 June 2011 Rory Macnamara brings considerable experience
and expertise and 1s also suitably qualified to act as Charr of the
Audit Committee as he has recent and relevant financial
experience He was therefore appointed Chairman of the Audit
Committee on 27 June 2011 and, smce his appointment, has
been fully involved in the Audit Committee process for the
financial year ended 31 July 2011

In addition to Rory Macnamara, the Board identfied Chris Moss
who |oined the Board on 6 September 2011 as a further
independent Non-Executive Director Therefore, after Sean
O’Connor and Nigel Payne have left the Board on 16 December
2011, two-thirds of the Board will be independent for the
purposes of the Code The Board refreshment process wilt
continue and the Company hopes to identify a suitable

replacement for Bnian Harnis during 2012 as he will cease to
be mdependent for the purposes of the Code due to his
length of service on the Board With two new independent
Non-Executive Directors, the Board s now able to revisit the
composition of the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination
Committees in order to comply with the Code and intends
to do 5o following the release of the Company’s financial
year results on 5 October 2011

The Board 1s accountable to the Company's shareholders for
good gavernance and the statement set out below describes
how the principles 1dentified in the Code are applied by

the Group

The Board constitution and procedures

As referred to above, the issues associated with the Company’s
historic US business made it more challenging for the Company
to attract Non-Executive Directors of suitable guality and
experience The Nomination Committee has undertaken a
comprehensive review of Board composition and performance
and as a result Rory Macnamara and Chris Moss have been
appointed Non-Executive Directors and Brian Harris replaced
Sean O'Connor as Senior Independent Director as announced by
the Company on 24 March 2011 The process is cngoing as the
Nomination Commuittee will continue to look for suitably qualrfied
and experienced ndividuals in fine with Code provision B2
Previous annual reviews have consistently found that the size,
composition and expertise of the Company’s Non-Executive
Directors have been appropriate for the Company's requirements
This financial year's review took into consideration two new
factors which were not present during the previous review (1) the
Company’s move from the AIM market to the Official List of the
London Stock Exchange and its inclusion in the FTSE 350 earlier
this year, and (n) that in September 2010 the Company entered
Into a non-prosecution agreement with the US Attorney for the
Southern District of New York, acting on behalf of the US
Department of Justice Following these events, the Nomination
Commuttee concluded that the Board would be strengthened
with the addition of new Non-Executive Directors, and Rory
Macnarnara and Chnis Moss were appointed The Company
anticipates that it will re-enter the FTSE 350 following the
acquisition of Centrebet international Limited and so, In order

to comply with the requirements placed on FTSE 350 companies
by the Code, the Nomination Committee will continue its Board
review process during the forthcoming financral year

The Company 1s controlled through the Board of Directors
which, at the end of the financial year, comprised two Executive
and five Non-Executive Directors

All Non-Executive Directors {other than Nigel Payne and Sean
C'Connor) are considered by the Board to be independent of
management and free of any relationship which could matenally
nterfere with the exercise of their ndependent judgement

The Chairman i1s primarnily responsible for the running of the
Board, and ensures that all Directors receve all relevant
information on financial, business and corporate 1ssues prior




to meetings The Group Chief Executive’s responsibilities focus
on coordinating the Company’s business and implementing
Group strategy

A formal schedule of matters 1s reserved for consideration by
the Board, which met 11 times during the year The Board

I1s responsible for overall Group strategy, acquisition and
investment policy, approval of major capital expenditure
projects and consideration of significant financing matters It
reviews the strategic direction of indwidual trading substdiaries,
their codes of conduct, their annuai budgets, therr progress
towards achievement of these budgets and their capital
expenditure programmes In addition, the Directors have access
to the advice and services of the Company Secretary and all
Directors are able to take independent professional advice in
the furtherance of their duties if necessary

All new Directors receive a full, formal and tailored induction
on joining the Board as well as training and advice on therr
responsibilities as necessary All Directors, in accordance with
the Code, submit themselves for re-election and new Directors
are subject 1o a transparent and nigorous appointment process
(iIncluding submitting themselves for re-election at the first
Annual General Meeting after ther appointment)

The Company Secretary 15 responsible for ensuring Board
processes and procedures are appropriately followed and
support effective governance and decision making

Board Committees

The Board delegates clearly defined powers to its Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees whilst the
Company's Social Responsibility Committee, as reported on
pages 22 to 24, 15 responsible for reviewing the Company's
pelicies on corporate social responsibility and making
appropriate recommendations to the Board The minutes of
each Committee are crrculated to and reviewed by the Board

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee Is currently chaired by Rory Macnamara
(who has recent and relevant financial experience for this role,
as Indicated on page 31) Its other members are Nigel Payne,
who was charr of the Audit Committee until Rory Macnamara's
appointment, Peter Dicks and Sean O'Connor The Company
recognises that Nigel Payne s not considered to be independent
but believes that the Committee will benefit from his continued
presence while the new Chairman familiarises himself with the
role Both Nigel Payne and Sean G*Connor will resign from the
Board and the Audit Committee on 16 December 2011

The Company believes that an Audit Committee with a
membership of three Independent Non-Executive Directors
reflects the size and needs of the business (as defined by the
Code) going forward The Company recognises that it does not
compty with provision C 3 1 in that not all the members of the
Committee are independent Non-Executive Directors (as
defined by the Code, and as explained above) The appointment
of Rory Macnamara cn 27 June 2011 reflects the steps taken by
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the Company to comply with this provision The resignations
of Nigel Payne and Sean O'Connor and the ongoing Board
refreshment process 1s Intended to result in full compliance
with the Code provision € 3 1, namely that all three members
of the Audit Committee should then be independent

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year (and met
twice during the last financial year) and normally inwites a
representative of both the audrtors and the Executive Directors
to attend 1ts meetings, the latter usually being the Group
Finance Director The Committee’s Secretary 1s Daniel Talisman,
the Company Secretary At the end of each meeting the
auditors are invited to meet with the Committee with no
Executive or staff members present The Terms of Reference of
the Committee include monitoring the integrity of the Financial
Statements, monitoring the internal and external audit function
and reviewing accounting policigs, finanaial controls and
financial reporting procedures The Audit Committee 15 also
responsible for assessing the objectivity and independence of
the external auditors where they also provide non-audit services
to the Company In the current financial year, non-audit fees
totalling £0 8m were paid to the external audstors This was due
to the number of major transactions the Company undertook
during the last financial year These included the acquisition of
Centrebet International Limited and the convertible bond 1ssued
by the Company in June 2011 The Audit Committee’s view was
that the current auditors were the most suitable supplier of the
non-audit services due to the skills and expenence of the
auditors The Commuttee considers that there are appropriate
safeguards in place to ensure the continued objectivity and
independence of the Company's auditor The Committee also
has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control and risk management systems, described in
more detall later in this section During the year, the Committee
receved presentations from senior management on the key
risks and control issues In thelr respective business areas and
reviewed risk mitigation plans for critical nisks Terms of
Reference for the Committee can be viewed on the Company’s
wehsite and are available in writing on request

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee 15 chared by Peter Dicks Brian
Harris, Sean O'Connor and Nigel Payne (appointed on 25
October 2010) are its other members The Committee’s
Secretary Is Daniel Talisman, the Company Secretary The
Company recognises that having the Chairman of the Company
as Chairman of the Remuneration Committee does not comply
with provision of D 2 1 of the Code and that this provision also
requires the Committee to be made up of three independent
Non-Executive Directors As noted above, Sean O*Connor and
Nigel Payne will resign on 16 December 2011 With two new
independent Non-Executive Directors, the Board is now able
to revisit the composition of the Audit, Remuneration and
Nomination Committees in order to comply with the Code

and intends to do so following the release of the Company’s
financial year results on 5 October 2011 The Remuneration
Committee meets when necessary during the year (and met
eight tmes during the last financial year) and considers the
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terms of employment and overall remuneration for the
Executive Directors, including penston nghts and any
compensation payments Further, the Committee makes
decisions regarding grants or awards under share plans, salaries
and incentive compensation The Executive Directors appraise
the Remuneratron Committee on the level and structure of
remuneration set for senior management Terms of Reference
for the Committee can be viewed on the Company's website
and are available in writing on request

The remuneration of Non-Executive Directors s determined by
the Executive Directors

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee 1s chaired by Sean Q"Connor who
will resign on 16 December 2011 and its other members are
Peter Dicks, Nigel Payne who will resign on 16 December 2011
and Brian Harns With two new, independent Non-Executive
Directors, the Board I1s now able to revisit the composition of
the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees in order
to comply with the Code and intends to do so following the
release of the Company’s financial year results on 5 October
2011 The intention 15 that the Committee will consist of three
independent Non-Executive Directors as required by prowvision
B 21 of the Code

The Committee’s Secretary is Dantel Talisman, the Company
Secretary The Committee sits formally at least twice a year (and
met three times during the last financial year) The Terms of
Reference for the Committee {including the terms and
conditions of appointment of Directors) can be viewed on the
Company’s website and are availlable in wnting on request

The Committee is responsible for monitoring and formally
reviewing the performance, composition, balance and expertise
of the Board as a whole and making an apprassal of the
contributton of indvdual Directors, inctuding a review of their
time commitment and attendance records The Cormittee
also considers succession planning for the Board and Group
senior management The annual review process carried out by
the Board and the new appointment made during the course
of this financial year and referred to v more detail above

were designed to ensure the Committee 15 meeting these
responsiilities When necessary the Committee prepares a
description of the role to be filled and engages external
consultants to administer a detailed search and the generation
of a shortlist Any recommendations for appointments or
replacements are brought before the Board

Evaluation
The Board continued its ongoing evaluation processes of itself
and 1ts Committees to assess thewr performance and identify

areas in which their effectiveness, policres and processes might
be enhanced As part of this process the Board continues

to comply with the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Admunistrators’ Code of Good Boardroom Practice The
performance of individual Directors has been considered by
the Chairman and Group Chief Executive In discussion with
other Non-Executive Directors The Non-Executive Directors
considered the performance of the Chairman, taking into
account the views of the Executive Directors

Communication with investors

The Group places considerable importance on communication
with rts mstitutional and private shareholders and responds
quickly to all queries received There 1s regular dialogue with
institutional shareholders as well as general presentations after
each quarter end and the issue of preliminary results

All shareholders have at least 20 working days’ notice of the
Annual General Meeting at which all Directors are introduced
and available for questions The Executive Directors endeavour
to meet the Company's larger institutional sharehoiders at

the time of the Company’s quarterly results announcements
and the Senior Independent Director, Sean O'Connor {up to
24 March 2011) and Brian Harnis (since 24 March 2011) have
been available to shareholders throughout the year

Accountability and audit

{a) internal control

The Group has complied with provision C 2 1 of the Cede and
the Turnbull Guidance for the year ended 31 July 2011 and up
to the date of approval of the Annual Report and Financiat
Statements The Board has ensured that there has been an
ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
significant risks faced by the Group This process has been
regularly reviewed by the Board

Whilst acknowledging the overall respansibility for the system
of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness, the Board
15 aware that the system is designed to manage rather than
eliminate the nsk of falure to achieve busmess objectives and
can only provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
agamst materal misstatement or loss

The Group's internal control procedures continue to be
reviewed, progressively developed and formalised to ensure that
they sufficiently meet the requirements of the Group Executive
members of the Board are involved daily in all aspects of the
business and they attend regular management meetings at
which performance against plan and business prospects are
reviewed Additionally, the Board seeks to continually
strengthen the internal control system where this is consistent
with rmproving the relationship between risk and reward
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Other key features and the processes for reviewing effectiveness of the internal control system that the Committee has apphed

during the current financial year are described as follows

« Manthly management formation, including financial accounts and key performance mndicators, have been defined and are
produced on a timely basis for review by the Board

* A detalled formal budgeting process for all Group businesses culminates in an annual budget which is reviewed and approved by
the Board Results for the Group and for sts main constituent businesses are reported monthly against the budget to the Board
and revised forecasts for the financial year are considered each quarter

s A comprehenstve financial and accounting package sets out the prnciples of the minimum standards required by the Board for
effective financial control This package sets out the financial and accounting policies and procedures to be applied throughout
the Group Comphance with the policies and procedures set out in this package is reviewed regularly Formal reports for the
Board are prepared by the senior management on the operation of those elements of the system for which they are responsible

+ The Company has clearly defined guidance for capital expenditure These include annual budgets, detailed appraisal and review
procedures, levels of authority and stringent due diligence requirernents where businesses are being acquired

External audit

The Audit Committee meets periodically to review the adequacy of the Group's internal control systems, accounting policies and
complhance with applicable accounting standards and to consider the appointment of external auditors and audit fees The Group's
auditors are invited to attend its meetings The Audit Commuittee 1s authonsed by the Board to investigate any activity within its
terms of reference and obtain outside legal or other ndependent professional advice as necessary The auditors and individual
Board members are afforded the opportunity for separate meetings with the Audit Committee The Audit Committee consists
wholly of Non-Executive Directors

The award of non-audit work to the auditors 1s subject to pre-clearance by the Audit Committee If the fee exceeds specified
thresholds As a matter of best practice and in accordance with the International Standard on Auditing 260, the auditors have held
discussions with the Audit Commuttee on the subject of auditor independence and have confirmed their iIndependence in writing

Board and Committee attendance

Possible Meetings
meetings Number attended
Peter Dicks Board 1 n
Audit 2 2
Remuneration 8 8
Nomination 2 2
Brian Harris Board 1 1"
Remuneration 8 8
Nomination 2 2
Andrew Mclver Board 11 1
Sean O'Connor Board 1 n
Audit 2 2
Remuneration 8 8
Nomination 2 2
Nigel Payne Board 1 n
Audit 2 2
Remuneration 6 6
Nomination 2 2
Jim Wilkinson Board 1 n
Rory Macnamara Board 2 1
Audit 1 1
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The Directors submit theirr Annual Report and Financial
Statements of the Group for the year ended 31 July 2011

Prinapal activities

The principal activities of the Group are the operation of
interactive hicensed betting and gaming operations over the
internet In Australia only, interactive betting 1s conducted over
the internet and telephone

Results and dividends

The results of the Group for the year are set out on page 49
and show a profit after taxation for the year of £20 7m (2010
£3 9m) The Directors recommend payment of a final dwvidend
of 1 1p per ordinary share (2010 11p) An interm dividend of
0 6p (2010 O 5p} was paid on 31 March 2011, meaning a total
dividend for the financial year of 1 7p (2010 1 6p)

Review of the business and future developments
A more detaited review of the business and future
developments 1s given in the Business Review on pages
18 to 21

Directors
The following Directors have held office during the year and
subsequently

P Dicks Charrman and Non-Executive

A Mclver Executive

1 wWilkinson Exetutive

N Payne Non-Executive

S O'Connor Senior Independent Non-Executive*
B Harris Senior Independent Non-Executive**
R Macnamara Non-Executive

C Moss Non-Executive

*  Upto 24 March 2011
** From 24 March 2011

All Directors will retire by rotation at this year’s Annual General
Meeting and will each seek re-election, being eligible

The interests of the Directors in the shares of the Company and
options for such shares were as shown on pages 39 to 44 both
reflecting the year end figures and any subsequent changes No
Drrector has any interest in any other Group company Detatls of
the Directors’ remuneration and service contracts appear on
pages 39 to 44

Auditor

The auditor, Grant Thornton UK LLP, i1s wilkng to continue in
office and a resolution to re-appoint Grant Thornton UK LLP wall
be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

Related party transactions
Transactions with related parties are disclosed in Note 22 of the
Group Financial Statements

Corporate governance

The Board's statement an Corporate Governance appears on
pages 32 to 35 and policies 1n refation to employees appear on
pages 22 to 23

Charitable donations

During the year, the Group donated approximately £240,000

to a number of chanties This figure includes donations to the
GREaT Foundation {formerly the Responsibility m Gambling
Trust), the Island Academy International School, Antigua, HEROS
{Homuing Ex-Racehorses Organisation Scheme) Included in this
total was a donation of £16,500 to the Friends of Israel Sport
Centre for the Disabled, of which Brian Harrnis 1s the founder

Directors’ indemnity
Details of the Directors’ indemnity insurance ¢an be found in
the Remuneration Report

Purchase of own shares

The Company was granted authority at the Extraordinary
General Meeting In December 2010 to purchase its own shares
up to a it of 10% of 1ts 1ssued ordinary share capital No
shares were purchased during the year under review

Share capital

The issued share capital of the Company 1s comprised of
ordinary shares of 0 1p each Each share carnes the right to one
vote per share on a poll The labiity of members of the
Company I1s imited to the amount unpaid, if any, on the shares
held by them All 1ssued shares of the Company are fully paid

Changes to the Company's share capital are set out in Note 19
At 4 October 2011 the issued share caprtal stood at
660,831,780

There are no speafic restrictions on the size of a holding nor
on the transfer of shares No person has any special nghts of
control over the Company’s share capital and all 1ssued shares
are fully pad

During the last year, the Company did not purchase any shares
as treasury shares

Use of finanaial instruments
Information on the use of financial instruments by the Group
Is contaned in Note 18

Policy and practice of payment of suppliers

In respect of the Group's next financial year, 1t 1s the policy of
the Group that each company within the Group should agree
appropnate terms and conditions for its transactions with
suppliers by means ranging from standard written terms to
individually negotiated contracts Payments are to be made in
accordance with these terms and conditions At 31 July 2011
the Company had a trade creditor balance of £nil (2010 £rl)
Group trade payables represented 28 days of purchases
(2010 18 days)
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Substantial shareholdings
As at the opening of dealing on 4 October 2011 the following Shareholders hold, or control, interests in 3% or more of the
Company's voting rights

Number  Voting nghts
%

of shares
Majedie Asset Management 64,428,737 975
UBS Global Asset Management 60,122,159 910
Marathon Asset Management 58,188,349 881
Paradise Poker 44 497,096 674
DBS Advisors Ltd 35,857,703 543
Legal & General Investment Management 35,577,364 539
Henderson Global Investors 24,769,237 375
Fidelity Investments 23,861,250 361
BlackRock 21,212,883 32
Credst Suisse as principal 21,203,858 32

Treasury management
The Board has lard out its pohicy on treasury management in the Financial Review on page 25

Going concern

The Directors have considered the implications of the potential impact of regulatory uncertainties discussed in Note 21 The
Directors have reviewed the cash flow projections for the Group 1n light of these uncertainties and have considered the financial
resources avatlable to the Group Accordingly, the Birectors have a reasonable expectation that the Group and the Company have
adequate resources to continue operations for the foreseeable future For this reason, they continue to adopt the going concern
basis in preparing the Financial Statements

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting will be held on 16 December 2011 The Notice of the Meeting 1s set out in a separate explanatory
crcular The Notice contains specal business, ncluding the renewal of authority to the Board to allot shares and the disapplication
of statutory pre-emption nghts on equity ssues for cash — both in accordance with ABI and NAPF Guidelines Shareholders should
complete the Proxy form accompanying the Notice of Meeting in accordance with the Notes contained in the Notice of Meeting

Significant agreements

The Companies Act 2006 requires the Company to wdentify those significant arrangements to which the Company 15 party that take
effect, alter or terminate upon a change of control of the Company following a takeover offer becoming fully unconditional, and
the effects of any such agreements

I0ESL and Interactive Sports (C | ) Limited (together the “Sportingbet Party”) have entered into an agreement with SEE Sports
Limited and Flyer International S A (“Flyer”} in relation to the provision of online gaming services in Greece (the “Joint Venture
Agreement”) Clause 12 5 of the Joint Venture Agreement prowides that if any third party or senes of connected third partes acquires
the ownership or control of more than 50% of the beneficial and/or legal sharehalding and/or legal voting rights of a Sportingbet
Party, and the Sportingbet brand ceases to exist as a separate stand-alone brand or be supported by such third party, Flyer shall be
entitled to terminate the Joint Venture Agreement with immediate effect

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Financial Statements in accordance with applicable law and
regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the Directors have elected
to prepare financial statements in accardance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the Eurapean Union
(“IFRSs"), and the Parent Company Financial Statements in accordance with United Kimgdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdorn
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice}
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Under Company law the Directors must not approve the Financial

Statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and farr

view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and of

the profit or loss of the Group for that period In preparing these

Financal Statemenits, the Directors are required to

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently,

* make judgements and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent,

* state whether applicable accounting standards have been
fallowed, subject to any matenial departures disclosed and
explained in the Financial Statements, and

» prepare the Financial Statements on the going concern basis
unless 1t 1s Inappropriate to presume that the Company will
continue m business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting

recerds which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Group and the Company and enable

them to ensure that the Financial Statements comply with
the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for

safeguarding the assets of the Group and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud

and other irregularities

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity
of the corporate and financial information included on the
Company’s website Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legsslation in other jurisdictions

Disclosure of information to the auditors

So far as each of the Directors 1s aware, there 1s no relevant
audit nformation of which the Company’s auditors are
unaware Each of the Directors has taken all the steps that he
ought to have taken as a Director in order to make himself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that
the Company's auditors are aware of that information

To the best of my knowledge

s the Financial Statements, prepared in accordance with the
applicable set of accounting standards, give a true and far
view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or
loss of the Company and the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole, and

+ the management report includes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and the
position of the Company and the undertakings included
in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a
descniption of the principal risks and uncertainties that
they face

On behalf of the Board

A Mciver
Director

4 October 2011

Company registration number 3534726
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1 Directors’ emoluments

Share Total Total

Salary/ options emoluments Pension emoluments Pension
£CG00 Notes fees Bonuses LTIP Benefits 200m 201 2010 2010
Executive Directors
Andrew Mclver 1,2,8 537 - 310 8 855 83 3,113 100
him Wilkinson 2,8 315 - 125 1 441 51 1,555 45
Non-Executive Directors
Peter Dicks 4,56,7 8 160 - - - 160 - 160 -
Brian Marris 3,56 78 120 - - - 120 - 120 -
Sean O’'Connor 3,4,5,6,7,810 S0 - - - 90 - 130 -
Nigel Payne 4,5,6,7, 8,10 88 - - - 38 - 128 -
Rory Macnamara 4,9 & - - - 6 - - -

1,316 - 435 9 1,760 134 5,206 145

1 Aggregate emoluments for Andrew Mclver as the highest paid Drrector excluding pension contriputions amounted to £855 227 (2010 £3 113 315)

2 The average total emoluments of the Executive Directors was £648 522 (2010 £2 333 925) The average total emoluments of non Board employees was £58 406

{2010 £62 650) The ratio between the two averages was 111 (2010 37 1) The average total emoluments of the Executive Directors (excluding share options} was £430,598
{2010 £936 619} The ratio to non-Board employees was 8 1 (2010 15 1)

Member of the Sccial Responsibility Committee

Mernber of the Audit Commitiee

Member of the Remuneration Committee

Member of the Nominaton Committee

Included within salaryffees 15 an annual share award vatued at £40 000 which Tarms part of the Non-Executive remuneration

Fhe Long Term Incentive Plan ("LTIP™) awards refate to the final payments in the previcus financial year of a scheme put in place in 2006 following the Group’s withdrawal
from the US

% Rory Macnamara s paid sataryffees of £75000 As he was appointed on 27 June 2011 the figure above has been prorated accordingly

10 5ean O'Conner and Niget Payne were paid consultancy fees in additon 1o their emoluments details of which are available at Nate 22 10 the Finanaal Statements

00~ o W

2. Interests of Directors in share options and share plans of the Company

No of No of
ophions at options at Earfiest Expiry of
1 August 31 July Date of  Exerase price exergise exercise
Notes 2010 2011 grant {p date period
Executive Directors

Andrew Mclver 1 1,959,566 1,567,652 20/01/09 - o1 0112712
Jim Wilkinson 1 1,077,760 862,208 20/01/09 - [FXFARVAN 01112712

Non-Executive Directors
Peter Dicks - - - - - -
Nigel Payne - - - - - -

Sean O'Connor - - - _ _ -
Brian Harris - - - - - -
Rory Macnamara - - - - - -

1 Share awards granted under the Sportingbet Restncted Share Plan 2009 Dunng the financial year Andrew Mciver surrendered 394,914 awards under this pian in consideration
of receiving an equivalent cash sum and 215,552 shares were reieased to im Wilkinsgn

2 3496 788 awards were exercised during this financral year (2010 18 158 451) of which 391 914 awards were surrendered and 215 552 exercsed by Directors of the Company
(2010 2999 932} The market price of shares at 31 July 2011 was 55 Sp and the range during the financial penod was 40 25p 10 79 B5p A surmmary of the perfarmance
critena upon which awards or cptions may be exercised 1s set out below
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3 Interests of Directors In shares in the Company

Notes 2011 2010
Executive Directors
Andrew Mclver 1 2,834.481 4,234,481
Jim Wilkinson 2 972,787 1517166

Non-Executive Directors

Peter Dicks 3 416,878 581,308
Sean Q'Connor 4 441,873 593,685
Brian Harris 5 294,031 378,461
Nigel Payne 6 111,398 176,398

1 Andrew Mclver sold 1 400 000 shares on 8 October 2010

2 bmWilkinson sold 650 000 shares on 8 October 2010 Iim Whlkinson received an interest in 215 552 shares on 24 November 201G following the release of an award under

the 2009 Share Plan 109 931 shares were sold to meet the tax ability of this award

Peter Dicks received an interest in 35 570 shares on 2 August 2010 forming part of his Non-Executive remuneration Peter Dicks sald 200 000 shares on 8 October 2010

4 Sean Q'Connor receved an interest in 35 570 shares on 2 August 2010 forming part of his Non-Executive remuneration Sean O Connor sold 200,000 shares on 8 October

2040 Sean O Connor receved an interest in 7 502 shares on 11 January 2011 and in 5 116 shares on 31 March 2011 pursuant to the Company’s Dividend Reinvestmant

Plan {"DRIP")

Brian Harns received an interest 1n 35 570 shares on 2 August 2010 forming part of his Non-Executive remuneration Brian Harris sold 120 000 shares on 8 October 2010

6 Nigel Payne recewved an interast in 35 570 shares on 2 August 2010 farming part of his Non-Executive remuneration all of which he subsequently gifted Migel Payne sold
65 000 shares an 8 October 2010

W

v

Remuneration policy

Historic

The Company's remuneration policy has been heavily influenced by both the Group’s and the industry's history — in particular the
exit from the market in the United States As a result, the central principle of the Group's historic remuneration policy has been
retention, n order to deliver stability during the Group's post-US “turnaround” penod That pertod culminated in the settlement
between the Company and the US Department of Justice, with the “turnaround” successfully achieved

Policy review

The Company‘s strategy 1s to continue to operate in both licence-issuing markets and markets which are yet to 1ssue online hicences
within a regulated, non-discriminatory framework (“non-licence issuing markets”) This means that the Group continues to face
regulatory and operational nisks, in the non-licence 1ssuing markets served by the Group’s European and Emerging Markets
Divistons The Company has increased the proportion of its overall business generated from licence-issuing, competitive markets
and plans to continue this approach in the future As a result, the risks facing the Group today are not on the same scale as in 2007
(mmediately post-US exit) or 2005 (the point at which the Group had reached a pinnacle in terms of its growth and success prior
to the US legislative changes which led to the Group's enforced withdrawa! from the US market}

Followig a review undertaken by the Company's external remuneration consultants, MM&K, the Commuttee has agreed upon a
policy shift from “retention” to “value creation” — essentially, shareholders and Directors share in the added valued generated from
the successful implementation of the Company’s strateqy

As recommended by the consultants, the Group’s policy will be

a) to continue to pay at or about market upper guartle levels in order to attract and retain key management talent and to reflect
the risks associated with operating a giobal online betting and gaming business in both licence-i1ssuing, competitive markets and
non-licence 1ssuing markets,

b) to ensure all Incentive remuneration (short-term and long-term) is wholly performance related and linked to demanding
performance ¢ntena, and

Q) to allow remuneration arrangements which pre-dated the Company’s move to the Official List in 2010 and which may not have
been compliant with the Combined Code on Corporate Gevernance (as was then in force) to be honoured up to 31 July 2012
This date coincaides with the expiration of the Restnicted Share Plan 2009
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee s chared by Peter Dicks and its
other members are Brian Harris, Sean O’Connor and Nigel
Payne Both Sean O'Connor and Nigel Payne will resign on 16
December 2011 The Company recognises that having the
Chairman of the Company as Chairman of the Remuneratton
Committee does not comply with the provision of D 2 1 of the
UK Corporate Governance Code ("Code™) and that this
provision also requires the Committee to be made up of three
independent Non-Executive Directors From 16 December 2011,
Sean O'Connor will be replaced by Rory Macnamara and Nigel
Payne will be replaced by Chnis Moss both of whom are
independent for the purposes of the Code The Board intends
to revisit the composition of the Remuneration Committee in
order to comply with the Code and intends to do so following
the release of the Company’s financial year results on 5 October
2011 In hne with the policy shift to "value creation”, the
Remuneration Committee seeks to structure total benefits
packages, including base salaries, which align the interests

of shareholders and senior management with particular
importance weighted upon the performance-related elements
of such total remuneration

The Remuneration Committee aims to seek and retain the
appropnate calibre of people and recommends fee levels to the
Board consistent with prevailing market conditions, peer group
companies and Directors’ roles and responsibifities

Specifically, when considering adoption of the Sportingbet
Restricted Share Plan 2009, the Remuneration Committee
assessed the needs of the Company for the perod through to
2012 compared to the Company's needs when the Sportingbet
2006 Restricted Share Plan was introduced in November 2006
immediately following the enactment of the Unlawful internet
Gambhng Enforcement Act 2006

Directors” remuneration will continue to be the subject of
regular review in accordance with the new remuneration policy
In the next financial year

Terms of reference

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Commritee include

* To determine the remuneration and benefits, including
Incentive arrangements, of the Executive Directors, the
directors of divisional companies and other employees of
similar status

* To set targets for performance-related pay elements of
remuneration packages

¢ To review recommendations from the Board on the overall
remuneration and benefits policy of the Group, with the
power and authority to amend 1t if appropniate

s To have regard to the provisions of the Combined Code and
associated guidance 1n its decision-makng

The Directors tntend that the Company’s remuneration policy
will be set by the Remuneration Commuttee In accordance with
the terms of reference set out above for the following financial
year and subsequent financial years
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Salary review — CEO and CFO

Following an external benchmarking exercise to assess the
salaries of both Chief Executive Officers and Chief Financial
Officers across the Company’s peer group', im Wilkinson was
awarded a salary increase of 6% to £315,000 on 1 August
2010 As has been the case since Andrew Mclver became
Group Chief Executive n 2006, Andrew Mclver was not
awarded an increase in salary for the 2010-2011 financia! year
Following a change in the taxation of pension contributions,
Andrew Mciver elected to receve the sum of £16,667 from
his pension contribution as salary mstead The Remuneration
Committee has decided that there will be no increase in
Directors’ salaries in the 201112 financial year

Service contracts

The Company‘s policy on the duration of Directors’ contracts
1s that for both Executive and Non-Executive Directors notice
penods will be ne more than one year served by the Company
or the Diwrector

Andrew Mclver and Jim Wilkinson have service contracts, dated
18 January 2006 and 21 January 2008 respectively, which provide
for 12 months’ notice by the Company or the Director and
contain non-compete obligations There are no payments or
compensation on early termination of the contract, save that
where a payment 1s made in lieu of notice and the Executive
commences new employment during such a period, they are
under an obhigation to repay the Company any prorated amounts

In the event of termnation or constructive dismissal following
a sale or reconstruction of Sportingbet each of the Executive
Directors 1s entitled to the equivalent of 24 months’ salary,
bonus, pension contnbutions and other benefits payable under
his respective service contract

Peter Dicks, Brian Harns, Sean O'Connor and Nige! Payne, each
of whom 15 a Non-Executive Director, has a contract for services
with a termination period of 12 menths® notice It 1s

the Company's policy that a proportion of therr fee 1s paid in
Sportingbet shares, which are to be retained until they cease
to be a Director of the Company In line with the policy of the
Remuneration Commitiee the Company has agreed that this
arrangement whereby the proportion of therr fee Is paid In
Sportingbet shares shall terminate on 31 July 2012 Given that
Sean O'Connor and Nigel Payne will resign on 16 December
2011, 1t 1s anticipated that this arrangement will only apply to
Peter Dicks and Brian Harns It 1s the Company’s policy that this
arrangement shall not apply to new Non-Executive Directors

1 Peer Group by size and actiwity
888 Holdings PLC ASOS PLC Autonomy Corporation PLC AVEVA Group PLC
Betfair Group PLC Betsson AB Blinkx PLC, BWIN Interactive Entertainment AG
Centrebet International Limited, Fidessa Group PLC Innovation Group (The) PLC
Kofax PLC Micro Focus international PLC Moneysupermarket com Group PLC
Paddy Power PLC Phoenix IT Group PLC Playtech Lid Rank Group {The) PLC
RM PLC SDL PLC Sportingbes PLC Unibet Group PLC

The peer group by size and actity was compiled by the Company s external
remunerat:on consultants MM&K as part of their review

JONVYNYIADD



42 Sportingbet Pic Annual Report 2011

Remuneration Report
Information NOT subject to audit

By way of a vanation agreement dated 17 January 2007 between Sportingbet and Sean O'Connor, and by way of a side letter dated
8 January 2007 from Sportingbet to Peter Dicks, in the event of the sale or reconstruction of Sportingbet (or any Sportingbet Group
company), both Sean O'Connor and Peter Dicks are entitled to be paid a sum in cash equivalent to the difference between £0 44
and the price per Ordinary Share in Sportingbet agreed at completion of such sale or reconstruction of Sportingbet, mulupled

by 500,000

In Decernber 2006, and in the case of Jim Wilkinsen, on 1 February 2008, and on 14 September 2011 in the case of Rory Macnamara
and Chris Moss, Sportingbet Pl¢ granted rolling indemnities to all of its Directors and the Company Secretary, uncapped In amount,
In relation to certain losses and habilities which they may incur in the course of acting as Directors and Company Secretary of
Sportingbet Plc or of one or more of its subsidiaries These indemnities replace those previously granted on similar terms and
contmued to be in place as at 31 July 2011, or the date of grant if later

Bonuses

The Company operates a bonus incentive scheme which applies, at differing rates, to the employment terms of the Executive
Directors and members of senior management Any payments under the scheme are subject to (1) operating profit targets for the
Group being achieved and, (i) the discretion of the Board 100% of annual salary can only be paid if stretch targets are achieved
The financial results for the last financial year did not reach the targeted bonus level and as a result no bonuses were paid

The Remuneration Committee reviews the packages and varies individual elements when appropriate from year to year
The Remuneration Committee has policies and procedures in place to monitor the size of potential rewards

Bonuses are included in termination payments on a case by case basis as determined by the Remuneration Committee

Pensions
The Company makes employer contributions of 20% of Andrew Mclver's salary and 17% of him Wilkinson’s salary to therr personal
pension schemes There are no Company pension arrangements in place

Share incentive schemes

Totat
awards
Current Outstanding outstanding Exeraisable
scheme at the Granted Forfeited Exercised Lapsed at the at the
or date of beginning duning during during during end of end of
scheme of the year the year the year the year the year the year the year
Scheme name cessation p) (6] (P} P {p) P (p}
Unapproved Share Closed on 1,215,000 - - - - 1,215,000 1,215,000
Option Scheme (the 1 November
"Unapproved Share 2005
Option Scheme”)
Sportingbet Plc Company Closed on - - - - - - -
Share Option Plan {the 1 February
"IR Approved Scheme”} 2010
Sportingbet Plc Executive Closed on 784,375 - - - - 784,375 784,375
Share Option Scheme 1 February
(the "Executive Scheme™) 2010
Sportingbet Long Term  Closed on 22,250 - - - - 22,250 22,250
Retention Plan 2005 31 July
{the "2005 Share Plan”) 2008
Sportingbet 2006 Closed on 1,626,802 217,391 - 891,323 50,385 902,485 -
Restrcted Share Plan 31 July
{the “2006 Share Plan"} 2009
Sportingbet Restricted  Current 15,532,800 1,272,274 - 3,106,555 558,750 13,139,769 -
Share Plan 2009
{the “2009 Share Plan™)
Totals 19,181,226 1,489,665 - 3,997878 609,135 16,063,878 2,021,625
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The 2009 Share Plan

Share options are now only granted under the 2009 Share Plan The 2009 Share Plan was adopted on 22 July 2008 and awards
were granted under the 2009 Share Plan to the Executive Directors and the Group’s senior management team on 20 January 2009
The Company’s policy to grant awards under the 2009 Share Plan 1s at the Remuneration Committee’s discretion as and when
considered appropriate

Entitlements under the 2009 Share Plan comprise a loyalty element and a performance element in equal proportions

Proportion of
total award to

be released

{maximum

award =
Year of Plan 12 x salary} Condibonal upan
1 10% Loyalty
10% Performance
2 15% Loyalty
15% Performance
3 25% Loyalty
25% Performance

Shares comprised within the loyalty element of the award may only vest and be released if the participant remains employed by the
Company as at 31 July 2010, 31 July 2011 and 31 July 2012 respectively Shares comprised within the performance element of the
award may only vest and be released if (a) the participant remains employed by the Company as at 31 July 2010, 31 July 2011, and
31 luly 2012 respectively, and, (b) certan performance conditions are satsfred

The performance condition 15 based on the extent to which growth in the Company’s earnings before interest, tax and amortisation
("EBITA Growth") exceeds RPI Growth over a financial year of the Company

For the performance award to be exercisable in full, EBITA Growth must exceed RPI Growth by 15% per finanoial year compound
The proportion of the performance award exercisable increases on a straight-line sliding scale between 0 and 100% if EBITA
Growth exceeds RP) Growth by any margin in excess of 5% over a financial year The Remuneration Committee believes that, in
relation to the 2009 Share Plan, EBITA Growth in excess of RPI Growth 1s the appropriate measure for determining the increase in
value delwered to sharehelders by the Company’s Executive Directors and other sentor executives for the penod 2009-2012 The
Remuneration Committee reviews the appropriateness of the performance measure and the specific target set when considering
each new grant of performance awards

During the current financiat year, the Company has undertaken a remuneration and benchmarking study using industry
consultants, MM&K The Remuneration Comrmittee has resclved to follow the recommendation of therr report, including that
payments due under existing incentive plans introduced in good faith as part of the Company’s historical remuneration policy
should be honoured This means that the 2009 Share Plan under its current terms will expire in July 2012, with final awards being
released in November 2012

Following ts admission to the Official List, the Company intends to introduce a new share plan to replace the 2009 Share Plan
which expires on 31 July 2012 Such share plan will be exclusively performance based

Cash-based long-term incentive plan

In 2008, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the remuneration and benefits packages of certain key employees As a result,

a cash-based long-term incentive plan (" LTIP"} was established and offered to the Executive Directors and a small number of key
employees in order to retain such individuals The LTIP pays a cash sum in August 2012 based on the relevant employee’s gross
salary In line with the advice received from the specialist external consultants, MM&K, awards made prior to the Company’s move
to the Offical List 1n good faith will be honoured In order for the employee to recewve such payment under the LTIP, they need to
be in employment up to and including 31 July 2012

Following the recommendations of the external remuneration consultants, MM&K and to ensure comphance with the Code and
investor protection group guidelnes, the Company will not adopt similar schemes (n the future
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Total Sharehclder Return (*TSR")

The following graph charts the movement i total cumulative sharehotder return {assuming reinvestment of dividends) of the
Company for the period from 14 May 2010 to 31 July 2011, compared with

1 total shareholder return relating to the FTSE 250 Index, and

2 total shareholder return relating to FTSE 250 Leisure and Travel Index

(chosen as the Compary has been a consuituent of both indices for a period of time since 1ts admission to the Official List
on 14 May 2010)

Sportingbet — TSR analysis
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Regulatory Developments

The supply of betting and gaming services continues to be
subject to a complex, inconsistent and often protectionist
approach by junisdictions worldwide However, action to
address this by international trade bodies (such as the World
Trade Organisation and the European Commisston) has resulted
in the censuring of certain nations and, increasingly, the
introduction of regulatory regimes for the activity

The Group continues to provide its services only from
Jurisdictions where 1t 15 hcensed and regulated, and therefore
the position In its place of supply (and where its regulator and
apphcable local laws deem the gambling transaction to take
place) 1s explicitly legal

In order to provide its worldwide gambling service, the Group
currently maintains licences tn Alderney, Antigua and Barbuda,
Australia, Curagao, Malta, South Africa and the UK

Major 1ssues of note in the last 12 months (all of which have

been widely reported) include

a the possibilty that the UK will impose regulatory
requirements {which will attract lrcence fees) on offshore
operators who target the local gambling market,

b the continued move towards requlation of the gambling
sector in a number of EU junsdictions, including Denmark,
Greece and Spain and a maturing of the licensing regimes
in France and Italy,

¢ reduced European Commission {"Commission”) pressure on
EU and EFTA Member States (principally Norway) to justify
their national gambling regimes {(iIncluding proposed new
regulatory regimes} despite the free trade requirements of
the Treaty on the Functioning of the European Union (the
“TFEU") also reflected in the protecttorust judgments of the
European Court of Justice (the “"ECJ"), albert the impact of
these judgments has been tempered to a degree by the
Carmen Media (and others) case in Germany and by the
fact the continued trend seems to favour local licensing
regimes, and

d increasing attempts to impose indirect taxes (via “product
fees”) on gambling operators by certain States in Australia,
and similar debates in the UK given that the horseracing
levy (the “Levy™)1s due to be replaced with another form
of payment

The European Union (“EU®)

EU Member States are subject to scrutiny from the Commussion
and, as “guardian” of the TFEU, it closely monitors existing and
developing legislation in the EU The principal method by which
the Commisston has applied pressure on Member States 1s
through the use of “infringement preceedings” against EtJ
Member States in contravention of EU law Through such
proceedings, the Cammussion has asked a number of States to
amend their laws restricting the free movement of gambling
services The ongoing pressure frorn the Commussion, and in
some cases national court deaisions declaring domestic
legislation to be incompatible with EU law, has led to a
domestic review of prohibitive legislation in a number of
junsdictions, including France and ltaly
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However, the ECJ has, in the course of the last two years,
delivered a series of judgments which ostensibly have found

i favour of the national monopolies In addition, where
Junsdictions have or are in the process of implementing licensing
regimes, the EC has been content to approve licensing systems
which are discrminatory, both in terms of the barners to entry,
and in relation to the tevel of tax (or bond secunty), icensees
are expected to pay France and Spain are in this category Both
Jurisdictions may yet be challenged at an EC level, but in the
meantime, whilst the introduction of a licensing regime seemns
to be the necessary salve to ward off infrngement proceedings,
there appears to be no obvious blueprint for a licensing regime
that will pass muster with the EC Therefore, jurisdicttons will
clearly incline towards creating regimes which will result in as
much economic upside for them, without paying heed to the
fact that the reduced margins for operators will result in poorer
consumer choice, particularly where the licensing regime in
question has not addressed the potential scope for creating vast
Jjunsdictional hguidity, which 1s particularly important for the
poker market

What i1s clear is that despite the EC Green Paper of last year,
which called upon Member States to consider all the potential
1ssues 1n relation to online gambling, including a form of
harmonisation, such harmonisation is unlikely to occur in the
short-term, and that the most Iikely trend to continue 1s for
junsdictions o introduce licensing regimes which may or may
not be tempered by EC intervention

Spain

As a result of the uncertanty over the legality of the provision
of online gambling, which s not expressly prohibited by Spanish
law, Spain has historically adopted a tolerant approach to the
supply of foreign gambling services into the junsdiction

Madnd and the Basque Region have both introduced licensing
regimes for online betting, which has led to the Spanish
government implementing a nationwide system of regulation
which will permit operators to obtain a Spanish gambling
licence The application process is due to commence in
November 2011 with the first licences expected to be granted
dunng December amidst concerns about maximum spending
obligations of players

United Kingdom

The Group holds a licence granted by the Alderney Gaming
Control Commuission, and s therefore permitted to advertise
in the UK under the Gambling Act 2005, which permits UK
advertising for Alderney iicensees on the back of Alderney’s
“whitelisted” status

In March 2010, the Department for Cuture, Media and Sport
{"DCMS") intiated a consultation regarding a system for the
regulation of remote gambling i UK The consultation also
looked at whether operators who advertise in the UK should
face new regulatory requirements (attracting consequential
hcence fees) to ensure a more even financial treatment of UK
operators and non-UK operators who target the UK market
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The UK government announced its intention to proceed with
these plans in July 2011 and the Treasury is currently canvassing
nput from stakeholders on the implications of a new gambling
tax to capture all gambling wath UK customers

France

France has histoncally been a staunch opponent of the provision
of online gambling services by operators without a French
licence which attitude has hardened in light of the introduction
of an online gambling regime

The Group now blocks French-domiciled customers by
residential address at registration and by IP address

Germany

Despite critiaism from the Commission, the Interstate Gambling
Treaty {the "Treaty") remains in force in Germany The Treaty
effectively provides that all forms of online gambling are
unlawful where they are targeted at German residents
However, in the period prior to its expiry there has been wide
debate in Germany as to whether an online licensing regime
was necessary or desirable

The current state of flux was brought about as a consequence
of the ECJ cases including Carmen Medra all of which
determined that there was an incompatibility between
Germany’s TFEU obligattons and its domestic gambling laws,
certainly In relation to betting This led to wide speculation
about the enforceability of the Treaty and prompted the review
of the licensing regime

Currently the EC does not accept that the proposed regime
(which severely Imits the number of licences available) 1s
compatible with its TFEU obligations and whilst the German
states (the Lander's) have tc revert to the EC with their counter-
proposals, this 1s not expected until late October 2011

On 14 September 2011, parhament of the state of Schleswig-
Holstein passed the Schleswig-Holstein Gambling Act, which
comes into force on 1 January 2012 Applications for licences
may be made as of 1 January 2011 but will not become
effective before March 2012 It 15 possible that Schleswig-
Holstein passed its Gambling Act before October in order to
put political pressure on the other federal states to pass an
Interstate Treaty that 15 identical or at least contains similar
provisions to the Schleswig-Holstein Gambling Act Schleswig-
Holstein have reserved the nght to become signatory to the
Interstate Treaty on Gambling in which ¢ase the Schieswig-
Holstein Gambling Act will be abolshed

Greece

Greece has been the subject of several challenges by the
Commussion and has previously been steadfast in defanding the
monopoly providers’ position (OPAP and ODIE} However, in
July 2010 the Minister of Economy proposed a draft bilt which
would make several changes to the way in which gambling 1s
regulated in Greece In July 2011 the new law was implemented
in Greece, which envisages the licensing of online gambling

Whilst all the underlying regulations have yet to be promulgated,
operators wishing to obtan a hicence must register to pay tax
during the period prior to the hicensing regime being iIniiated
Again, this proposal may be subject to challenge

Italy

Italy has changed its monopoly-orientated stance on online
gambling and has started to permit a number of non-Italian
bookmakers to obtain ficences ta operate online enabling betting
offenngs from certain outlets such as newsagents, bars and
cafes The Incentivi Decree recently extended licensable offerings
to include cash nng games for poker and other casino games

The EC also approved Italy's Abruzzo Law on 5 May 2010 and
announced that it had closed proceedings against Italy The
Abruzzo Law allows gambling operators offering their services
in Italy to have web servers and a registered company outside of
Italy, as long as they are still within the European Economic Area
or a country that has a bilateral agreement with Italy Also cash
poker and casino games have now been introduced

Norway

Norway implemented legislation (which became effective in
2010) which established that processing of payments for
unlicensed gambling where such gambting 15 unhcensed in
Norway 15 an accessory offence for financial services providers
The Group has ceased taking business from Norwegian citizens
It plans to close Centrebet’s Norwegian operations unless a sale
can be completed by late October

Denmark

In line with the Group’s desire to only operate In regulated
markets, Denmark remains a terntory of potential interest to
the Group

The implementation of the new Danish Act on Gaming, which
will liberalise part of the Danish gambling market by introducing
a licensing system for certain online gambling activities, has
been postponed due to a deaision by the EU Commission

to open a formal State Aid Investigation The investigation
followed a challenge made in December 2010 by the Dantsh
gambling machine trade and a Danish land based casino that
the different levels of tax to be applied to land based gaming
activities and gambling offered online were disciminatory and
amounted to state aild The Danish tax ministry {Skatteminister)
and the European Commissicn have confirmed that a decision
an this State Aid Investigation will be received tmmunently

Rest of the World

Turkey

Provision of gambling services in Turkey Is generally prohibited
by Article 228 of the Turkish Cniminal Code In additian, the
Law no 7258 regarding Provision of Betting and Luck Games
In Footbal! and Other Sportive Competitions (' Law 7258")
explatly bans offshore onginated online gambling conducted
without a local authonisation, whether the operator 1s based In
or outside Turkey




Turkish law asserts junsdiction over any act that violates the
laws of Turkey If the result of such act accurs wathin Turkey,
irrespective of the location of the offender Accordingly, the
actwities of the Group, in taking online gambling custom from
Turkey, are considered dlegal under Turkish law

In addition, Article 8 of Law no 5651 regarding Regulation
of Broadcasts in Internet Environment and Prevention of
Commutted by Broadcasting (“Law 5651} permits the Turkish
authorities to block online gambling If “satisfactory suspicion
regarding gambling services arises in such broadcasting”

Turkey 15 not a member of the EU, nor has it included online
gambling in its WTO free trade commitments

The Group relies on the argument that a country’s domestic law
cannot make Illegal a supply remotely and lawfully made from
another junisdiction It remains legal for customers to transact
with offshore online operators, although customers may be
subject to adminustrative (rather than cniminaly enforcement
under Turkish law The Group continues 0 accept bets from
Turkish residents, although it does not have employees, nor
does 1t conduct advertising activity from within the territory

in the summer of 2011 1t announced that it may consider
exiting the Turkish market by a disposal

Australia

The Group holds sports betting licences in Australia in the
Northern Terrntory and provides services from the Northern
Territory to other states The Group blocks Australians from
accessing any of the Group’s other products It has been held,
as a result of various court cases to which the Group and others
have been a party, that holding a sports betting licence in one
state entitles the licensee to advertise and supply in another
However, there has been a growing trend in relation to payment
of fees for the use of “sports products” (e g race fields and
sporting fixtures) which 1s lewied against betting operators in
Australia Such fees are levied on operaters icensed in Australia,
in addition to taxes they pay in their licensing state

Race fields legislation exists in every Australian state except the
Northern Terntory The race fields legislation, however, is subject
to ongomng legal challenge, principally on the basis that there
exists ant-competitive discnmination between bookmakers and
the tote iIncumbent monopolies The Productivity Committee
(tasked with re-evaluating the gambling industry) has taken the
view that there may be ment in such fees being dealt with on a
national basis via some form of national statutory scheme, but
this and other recommendations 1t made will not be taken up by
the Austrahan Federal Government Despite this the government
announced in August 2011 that it would again review the
Interactive Gambling Act 1o assess the adequacy of the
prohibition on gaming A report 15 expected in the early part
of 2012 The report may highlight the importance too of
continuing to ban in-runming sports betting which 15 currently
also precluded (except for horseracing)

Unlike race fields, and with the excepuon of Victonia, no state
or territory has legislation that specifically requires betting
operators to pay fees for the use of sporting fixture information

Sportingbet Plc Annual Report 2011 47

Moreover in the summer of 2011 Victoria announced 1t was
planning to toughen penalires for any infractions More
generally, however, a practice has developed under which
corporate bookmakers enter into direct commeraial agreements
with the national administrative bodies for each sport Such
agreements typically provide for a fee equivalent to 5% of
revenue 1o be paid to the administrative bodies

United States
The US continues to prohibit online gambling

Despite the current prohibitive position, there have been
suggestions that, in light of the economic downturn in the

US and the resultant loss of revenue for land-based casino
operators, hberalisation may occur in the online gambling
market Increasing pressure from consumers and lobby groups
has also resulted in legislative proposals To date these have
not amounted to a change in the existing prohibrtive regime
although several State bills are gaming momentum, particularly
in New Jersey, albeit that there 1s concern that a Federal bill if
introduced {which on the face of it may look ideal) may only
favour certain States such as Nevada

On 20 September 2010, the Group entered into a Non-
Prosecution Agreement {the “Agreement”} with the Office of the
United States Attorney for the Southern District of New York
("SDNY"), acting on behaf of the United States Department

of Justice, with respect to the Group’s previous activities in the
United States Under the terms of the Agreement, SDNY wall
not seek to prosecute the Group for activities related to its
internet gambling business with customers in the United States
from 1998 to 2006 The Group ceased to offer online gambling
to United States customers on 12 Qctober 2006

As part of the Agreement, the Group has agreed to pay a total
of $33m {£21 3m) to SDNY, payable in three nstalments (1)
$15m (£9 7m) payable no later than 30 September 2010, (1))
$12m {£7 7m) no later than 30 September 2011, and () $6m
{£3 9m) no later than 31 March 2012

In addition to the above, the Group has agreed to cooperate
with SDNY and disclose information to SDNY relating to the
Group's former internet gambling business in the United States
and adhere to certain further obligations from the date of the
Agreement with respect to its future conduct in the United
States The Group has also acknowledged and accepted certain
details regarding its former business activities n the United
States which are set out In the Statement of Facts which form
part of the Agreement

The Group believes that this settlement enables a line to be
drawn under its previous activities in the United States

Asia

The regulatory regime in many Asian countries 1s currently
prohibitive and, at present, the Group has no operations
or activities In Asta

JONVNYIAOD
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Independent Audit Report
For the year ended 31 July 2011

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Sportingbet Plc

We have audited the Group Financal Statements of Sportingbet
Pic for the year ended 31 July 2011 which comprise the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, Consolidated
Balance Sheet, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity,
Consolidated Cash Flow and the related Notes The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation
Is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards
{"IFRS") as adopted by the European Union

This report 15 made solely to the Company's members, as a body,
in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Compantes Act
2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the Company's members those matters we are required
to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility 1o anyone other than the Company and
the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities set out on page 37, the Directors are responsible
for the preparation of the Group Financial Statements and

for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our
responsibiity 1s to audit and express an apinion on the Group
Financial Statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland} Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board's ("APB's") Ethucal Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the finanaal statements
A descniption of the scope of an audit of financial
statements Is provided on the APB’s website at
www frc org uk/apb/scope/private ¢fm

Opinion on financal statements

In our opinion the Group Financial Statements

* give a true and farr view of the state of the Group's affairs as
at 31 July 2011 and of its profit for the year then ended,

» have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRS as
adopted by the European Union, and

* have been prepared in accordance wrth the requirements of
the Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the

Companies Act 2006

In our opinton

« the information given 1n the Directors’ Report for the financial
year for which the Group Financial Statements are prepared I1s
consistent with the Group Financial Statements and,

« the information given in the Corporate Governance
Statement set out on pages 32 to 35 with respect to internal
control and risk management systems in relation to financial
reporting processes and about share capital structures 1s
consisient with the Financial Statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to

you If, In our opinion

o certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by
law are not made, or

+ we have not received alt the nformation and explanations
we require for our audit, or

+ a Corporate Governance Statement has not been prepared
by the Company

Under the Listing Rules, we are required to review

¢ the Directors’ statement, set out on page 37, in relation to
going concern, and

* the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating 10
the Company’s compliance with the nine provisions of the
June 2008 Combined Code speafied for our review, and

¢ certain elements of the report to shareholders by the Board
of Directors’ remuneration

Other matter

We have reported separately on the Parent Company Financal
Statements of Sportingbet Plc for the year ended 31 July 20N
and the information in the Directors’ Remuneration Report that
1s described as having been audited

Paul Etherington BS¢ FCA CF

Senior Statutery Auditor

For and on hehalf of Grant Thernton UK LLP
Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants
London

4 October 2011

Z./» /MW




Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 July 2011
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Year ended
I July 2011 31 huly 2010

Continuing operations Notes £m £
Amounts wagered 3 2,0539 1.971 3
Net gaming revenue 2 2040 2075
Other operating revenue 23 -
Total revenue 3 206 3 2075
Adrmmistrative expenses before exceptional items, share optien charge and amortisation

of other intangible assets (168 2) (1721)
Group operating profit before exceptional items, share option charge and

amortisation of other intangible assets 3 381 354
Other administrative expenses
Exceptional items 4 (10 8) {24 5}
Share cption charge 6 {12) (2 0)
Amortisation of other intangible assets 12 a7 (18}
Total administrative expenses (1819) (200 4}
Group operating profit 244 71
Finance income 8 05 04
Finance costs 8 an (0 6}
Profit before taxation 5 238 69
Taxation 9 31 (30}
Group profit for the year 207 39
Profit attributable to the owners of the Parent 207 39
Other comprehensive income
Amounts initially taken to equity as a result of applying hedge accounting (0 4) 03
Amounts recycled to the Statement of Comprehensive Income to match the hedged items 12 03
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 19 15
Total comprehensive income for the penod attnbutable to the owners of the Parent 210 60
Profit per ordinary share
Basic 10 39p 08p
Diluted 10 39 07p

The Notes on pages 53 to 77 form part of these Financial Statements
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
For the year ended 31 July 2011

As at
31 July 2051 31 July 2010
Notes £m fm
Non-current assets
Goodwilll 1 418 415
Other intangible assets 12 332 218
Property, plant and equipment 13 262 271%
Deferred tax asset 9 12 20
102 4 924
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 14 163 126
Cash and cash eguivalents 15 180 2 58 ¢9
Derwvatives 18 - 13
196 5 728
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 16 {60 4) {54 4)
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 16 (6 0} (53
Derwatives 16 02 -
{66 6) (59 7)
Net current assets 1299 131
Non-current habilities
Trade and other payables 16 - (118
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 16 (53 8) (12
(53 8) (12 8)
Net assets 178 5 927
Equity
Issued share capital 19 07 05
Share premium 600 599
Reserves 1178 323
Total equity 178 5 927

The Notes on pages 53 to 77 form part of these Financial Statements These Financial Statements were approved by the Board and

/

authorised for issue gn 4 October 2011
A Mclver
Director D
N \
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 July 2011

Equity

Issued Share portion of Profit Foreign
share premum Other convertible and loss exchange
capital account reserves bond account reserve Tatal
£fm £m fm fm tm £m fm

As at 1 August 2009 05 594 - - 333 - 932
Employee share options - 05 - - (0 6) - (01
Share option charge - - - - 11 - i
Dividends pad - - - - {7 5) - (7 5)
Profit for the year - - - - 39 - 39
Hedge accounting - - - - 06 - 06
Foreign currency exchange - - - - - 15 15
As at 1 August 2010 05 599 - - 308 15 927
Employee share options - 01 - - 07 - (0 6)
Issue of shares 02 - 623 - - - 625
Equity portion of convertible bond - - - 103 - - 103
Share option charge - - - - 12 - 12
Dwidends paid - - - - (8 6) - {8 6)
Profit for the year - - - - 207 - 207
Hedge accounting - - - - {16) - (1 6)
Foreign currency exchange - - - - - 19 19
As at 31 July 2011 0.7 600 623 103 418 34 178 5

The increase in Group equity of £85 8m (2010 decrease of £0 5m) is wholly represented by the movements shown in equity
reserves and share capital in Note 19 and the statement above

Other reserves represent amounts relating to the premiums arising on the 1ssue of shares under the provisions of section 612 of the
Companies Act 2006

The equity portion of the convertible bond reserve represents the equity portion of the £65m fixed rate 7% convertible bond
(Note 16} after deduction of transaction costs of £0 5m attnbutable to the equity component

All Group equity 15 attnibutable to the owners of the Parent

SIVIDONVNH
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 July 2011

Year ended

31 July 2011 31 july 2010
Notes £m £m

Group profit after taxation 207 39
Depreciation 52 54
Software amortisation 81 57
Other amortisation 17 18
Share option charge 12 20
Finance cost 06 02
Taxation 31 30
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 406 220
(Increase)/decrease 1n recevables {0 9) 08
(Decrease)/increase in payables (87) 250
Cash generated by operations 310 478
Income tax paid 21) (4 0)
Net cash from operating activities 289 438
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 13 1) {10 4}
Purchases of software 12 (20 9) {13 3
Acquisition of subsidiaries 01 (0 6)
Interest paid (0 8} ©2)
Cash used 1n investing activities (25 9} (24 5)
Exercise of share options o7 (10}
Issue of shares 618 02
Finance leases 07 25
Dividends paid (8 6) (7 5}
Issue of convertible loan notes 620 -
Net cash from financing activities 152 (5 8)
Net increase In cash and cash equivalents in the year 118 2 135
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 589 44 3
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 31 11
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 15 180 2 58 9

The Notes on pages 53 to 77 form part of these Financial Statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Accounting policies
Basis of preparation
The ftnancial information provided 1s for the Group’s financial year ending 31 July 2011

The financial informatron has been prepared in accordance with applicable International Financial Reporung Standards (“IFRSs")
as adopted by the European Union

STYIDNYNI

The IFRS Financial Statements have been drawn up on the basis of accounting policies consistent with those appled in the Financial
Statements for the year to 31 July 2010, except for the following

* [FRS 2 (amendment) — Share-based payment - Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions

* |mprovements to IFRSs 2010

The accounting policies have been applied consistently throughout the Group for the purposes of preparation of these Financial

Statements The effect of adopting the above standards and interpretations 15 not matenial to Group profit or to total equity in

the current or prior year Prior year information has not been restated, therefore an additional comparative Balance Sheet has not ‘
been presented

Standards in issue not yet effective

The |ASB and IFRIC have 1ssued the following Standards and Interpretations, apphcable to the Group, which are effective for periods
starting after the date of these Financial Statements and are yet to be adopted by the Group

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - 1 January 2013

{FRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements — 1 January 2013

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements — 1 January 2013

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests i Other Entities — 1 January 2013

IFRS 13 Farr Value Measurement — 1 January 2013

IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures — 1 January 2011

IAS 19 Employee Benefits (Revised June 2011) — 1 January 2013

I1AS 27 (Rewised) Separate Financial Statements — 1 January 2013

IAS 28 (Revised) investments in Associates and joint Ventures — 1 January 2013

Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets — Amendments to IFRS 7 — 1 July 2011

Deferred Tax Recovery of Underlying Assets — Amendments to 1AS 12 Income Taxes - 1 January 2012
Presentation of items of Other Comprehensive Income — Amendments to IAS 1 - 1 July 2012

The Group does not anticipate that the adoption of these Standards and Interpretations will have a material effect on its Financial
Statements on initial adoption

Basis of consolidation - subsidiaries !
The Group Financial Statements for the year consolidate the Financial Statements of Sportingbet Plc and the entities 1t controls |
(its subsidiaries)

Subsidianies are consolidated from their date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated untl the date that such control ceases Control comprises the power to govern the financial and operating policies of
the investee so as to obtain benefit from its activities and 1s achieved through direct or indirect ownership of voting nghts, currently
exeraisable or convertible potentiat voting nights or by way of contractual agreement Accounting policies are consistently applied
across the Group All inter-Company balances and transactions are eliminated

Business combinations

On acquisition, the assets, habilittes and contingent habilities of a subsidiary are measured at their fair values at the date of
acguisition Any excess of the consideration transferred over the farr values of the identfiable net assets acquired 1s recognised as
goodwill Any deficiency of the cost of acquisition below the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired (1 e discount on
acquisiion) 1s credited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the penod of acquisition

Contingent and deferred consideration ansing as a result of acquisitions 15 stated at a measure of far value at the date of
acquisition Contingent consideration 1s based on management’s best estimate of the likely outcome The farr vatue of contingent
share consideration 1s measured based on the market price of shares at acquisiion Subsequent remeasurement of contingent
consideration 1s recogmised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Accounting policies continued

Amounts wagered

Amounts wagered do not represent the Group's statutory revenue They represent amounts staked in respect of bets placed on
sporting events In the year, net win in respect of casino and gaming, and rake in respect of poker games that have concluded in
the year Amounts wagered are stated net of certain promotional bonuses

Revenues

Net gaming revenue

Net gaming revenue 1s measured at the fair value of consideration receved or recevable, and comprises the following

« Sports betting gains and losses in respect of bets placed on sporting events in the year stated after betting taxes and certain
promotional bonuses

* Open positions are carried at fair market value and gains and losses anising on this valuation are recogmsed in revenue, as well
as gains and losses realised on positions that have closed

* Casino and gaming net win in respect of bets placed on casino games that have concluded in the year, stated net of certain
promotional bonuses
Poker net win in respect of rake for poker games that have concluded in the year, stated net of certain promotional bonuses

= Where the Group refers to gaming revenue, this represents net gaming revenue before the deduction of promotional bonuses

Other operating revenue
Other operating revenue 1s comprised of transaction fees for payment processing services and 1s measured at the farr value of the
consideration receved

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisiuon over the Group's share of the fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities acquired Goodwill 1s altocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing

Goodwill allocated to each cash-generating unit 1s not amortised and 1s reviewed for impairment at least annually Where
Impairment arises on a cash-generating unit, 1t is allocated initially against goodwill and thereafter pro rata amongst other assets
Any impairment 1s recognised immediately m the Statement of Comprehensive Income and 1 not subsequently reversed Goodwill
ansing on earlier acquisitions prior to IFRS conversion was being amortised over its estimated useful Ife of 20 years In accordance
with the transitional provisions of IFRS 1 First ime adoption of IFRS, the unamortised balance of goodwill at 31 July 2006 was
frozen and reviewed for iImpairment at least annually

Computer software
Where, in the opimon of the Directors, the Group's expenditure in relahion 1o development of internet actwities results n future
economic benefits, these costs are capitalised and amortised over the useful economic life of the asset

Development costs are capitalised only when 1t is probable that future economic benefit will resuit from the project and the

following criteria are met

= The technical feasibility of the product has been ascertained

* Adequate technical, finrancial and other resaurces are available to complete and sell or use the intangible asset

+ The Group ¢an demonstrate how the intangible asset will generate future economic benefits and the ability to use or sell the
intangible asset can be demonstrated

* It s the mtention of management to complete the intangible asset and use 1t or sell it

e The development costs can be measured reliably

Amortisation 1s provided on computer software at a rate caleulated to write each asset down to 1ts estimated residual value, using
the straight-line method, over its expected useful life, as follows

Computer software 20-33% on ¢ost

Methods of amortisation, restdual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, H appropriate, at each Balance Sheet date
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1. Accounting policies continued

Other intangible assets

Identifiable intangible assets acquired as part of business combinations, that meet the conditions for recogniion under IFRS 3, are
recegnised at their far value at the acquisition date and amortised over their useful economic Ife as follows

Superbahis URL 33% on cost
Belmond International Limited - marketing contract 20% on cost

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment 1s stated at cost less accumulated depreciation Depreciation 1s provided on all property, plant and
equipment except for freehold land at rates calculated to wrrte each asset down to its estimated residual value, using the straight-
line method, over 1ts expected useful Iife, as follows

Fixtures, fittings and equipment 25% on cost
Leasehold improvements 10% on cost
Motor vehicles 25% on cost
Computer equipment 20-33% on cost
Freehold tand and buildings 2% on cost

Methods of deprecation, residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each Balance Sheet date
Leasehold improvements are included within fixtures, fitings and equipment in the property, plant and equipment note

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

At each Balance Sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and other intangible
assets to deterrmine whether there i1s any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment toss I any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any) Where the asset
does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs

Recoverable amount 15 the higher of far value less costs to sell and value in use In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the tme value
of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or cash-generating unit) 1s esttmated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset {or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount An impairment loss is recogmised as an
expense immediately

Where an imparrment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset {or cash-generating urut) 15 increased to the
revised estimate of 1ts recoverable amount, but 5o that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset {or cash-generating unit) In prior years

A reversal of an impairment loss 1s recognised as income immediately

Finance costs
Finance costs are charged to profit over the term of the debt so that the amount charged 15 at a constant rate on the
carrying amount

Finance costs include 1ssue costs, which are initsally recognised as a reduction in the proceeds of the associated finanaial instrument
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial habilities are recogmised on the Group’s Balance Sheet when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual prowisions of the instrument

STIVIONVNH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Accounting policies continued

Trade recevables

Trade recewables are recognised initially at far value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effectve interest
method, less prowision for imparrment A prowisien for impairment of trade receivables 1s established when there 15 objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the recevables Significant financral
difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptey or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in
payments {more than 60 days overdue) are considered indicators that the trade recevable 1s impaired The amount of the provision Is
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the onginal
effective interest rate The carrying amount of the asset 1s reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the
loss 1s recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income within *Other administrative expenses' When a trade recewvable 1s
uncollectible, it 13 wntten off against the allowance account for trade recevables Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against "“Other admenistrative expenses’ In the Statement of Comprehensive Income

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash eguivalents include cash in hand deposits with banks It also includes cash reserves and short-term cash i transtt
held by payment service providers

Financial habilities and equity
Financial liabihities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
An equity instrument i1s any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities

Interest bearing loans and other borrowings

Borrowings are recognised nitially at fair value, net of transaction costs meurred Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised
cost, and the difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income over the penod of borrowings using the effective interest method

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional night to defer settlement of the liabilty for
at least 12 months after the Balance Sheet date

Trade payables

Trade payables are not interest-bearing and are stated initially at therr fair value and thereafter at therr amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method The fair value of trade and other payables has not been disclosed as, due to therr short duration,
management considers the carrying values recognised in the Balance Sheet to be a reasonable approximation of their fair value

Equity instruments
Equity instruments 1ssued are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct 1ssue costs

Convertible bonds

The net proceeds received from the issue of convertible bonds are split between a hability element and an equity component at the
date of issue The fair value of the liabriity component s estimated using the prevaling market interest rate for similar non-convertible
debt The difference between the proceeds of issue of the corvertible bonds and the fair value assigned to the hability component,
representing the embedded option to convert the hability into equity of the Group, 1s included n equity and 15 not remeasured The
hability component is carried at amortised cost

Issue costs are apportioned between the liabiity and equity componenits of the convertible bonds based on their relative carrying
amounts at the date of 1ssue The portion refating to the equity component 1s charged directly against equity

The finance cost on the liability component is calculated by applying the prevathing market interest rate, at the time of 1ssue, for
simitar non-convertible debt 1o the iability component of the instrument The difference between this amount and the interest paid
Is added to the carrying amount of the convertible bonds

Derivative finanaal instruments
The Group's activities expose 1t primanly to the financial nisks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates

The Group uses denvative financial instruments to reduce exposure to foreign exchange rate movements The Group does not hold
or 1ssue derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes
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1. Accounting policies continued

Dernwvatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a dervative contract 1s entered mto and are subsequently remeasured

at therr farr value, calculated using either discounted cash flow techmgues or by reference to market pnces supplied by banks

The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative 1s designated as a hedging instrument and,
if s0, the nature of the item being hedged The Group designates certain derivatives as hedges of the vanability of cash flows (cash
flow hedge)

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the relattonship between hedging instruments and hedged items as
well as its sk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions The Group also documents its
assessment, both at hedge inception and on an angoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions
are highly effective In offsetting changes in the cash flows of the hedged items

The use of financial denvatives 1s governed by the Group's policies approved by the Board of Directors, which provide written
principles on the use of financial derivatives

Dervative financial instruments not eligible for hedge accounting are recognised in the Balance Sheet at fair value calculated using
either discounted cash flow technigues or by reference to market prices supplied by banks Changes in their fair value are recognised
1n the profit or loss

Cash flow hedges
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges 1s recogmsed
In eguity The gain or loss relating to the effective portion 1s recognised immediately in the profit or loss

Amounts accumulated (in equity are recycled in the consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income in the periods when the
hedged item will affect profit or loss However, when the hedged transaction results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or
a liability, the gains and losses previously deferred in equity are transferred from other comprehensive income and included in the
mutial measurement of the cost of the asset or llability

Farr value measurements are based on quoted prices in active markets for the same instrument

When a hedging instrument expires or Is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the critena for hedge accounting, any cumulative
gain or loss existing in other comprehensive income at that time remains i equity and 1s recognised when the forecast transaction
15 ultimately recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the
cumulative gain or loss that was reported in other comprehensive income 1s iImmediately transferred to the consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income

Dividends
Dvidends are recognised when they become legally payable Intenm dividends are recognised when paid Final dividends are
recognised when approved by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting

Functional and presentational currency

Items included in the Financial Statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”) The consolidated Financial Statements are presented i
sterling (£) which 15 the Parent’s functional and presentational currency

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions of indwidual companies are translated at the rates ruling when they occurred Foreign currency
monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the closing spot rate Any differences are taken to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income

The results of overseas operations are translated at the average rates of exchange during the year and therr balance sheets
translated into sterling at the rates of exchange ruling on the Balance Sheet date Exchange differences which arise from translation
of the opening net assets and results of foreign subsidiary undertakings and from translating the Statement of Comprehensive
Income at an average rate are taken to reserves

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax
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1. Accounting policies continued

The tax currently payable 1s based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the Staternent

of Comprehensive Income because 1t excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it

further excludes iterns that are never taxable or deductible The Group's liability for current tax 1s calculated using tax rates that ‘
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and kabilities

in the Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and i1s accounted for using

the balance sheet liability method Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred

tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary

differences can be utiised Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference anses from the imtial recoagrition

of goodwill or of other assets and liabihties in a transaction (other than in a business combination) that affects neither the tax profit

nor the accounting proftt i

Deferred tax liabiittes are recognised for taxable temporary differences ansing on investments in subsidianies except where the
Group 1s able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and 1t 1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
In the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer
probably that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax 1s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in accordance with laws which have been enacted or

substantially enacted at the Balance Sheet date Deferred tax 1s charged or credited 1n the Statement of Comprehensive Income,

except when it refates to items charged or credited directly to other comprehensive income, in which case the deferred tax is also w
dealt with in other comprehensive income }

Employee benefits

Pension costs

For defined contribution arrangements the amount charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in respect of pension costs
and other post-retrement benefits is the contributions payable in the year Differences between contributions payable in the year
and contributions actually paid are shown as either accruals or prepayments in the Balance Sheet

Share-based employee remuneration

Where share options are awarded to employees, the fair value of the options at the date of grant i1s charged to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income over the vesting period, with the corresponding credit to the profit and loss reserve Non-market vesting
conditions are taken into account by adjusting the number of equity Instruments expected to vest at each Balance Sheet date so
that, ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised over the vesting period 1s based on the number of options that eventually vest
Market vesting conditions are factored into the fair value of the options granted As long as all other vesting conditions are satisfied,
a change 1s made wrrespective of whether the market vesting conditions are satished The cumulative expense 1s not adjusted for '
falure to achieve a market vesting condition

Where the terms of the optrons are modified before they vest, the increase in the farr value of the options, measured immediately
before and after the modification, 15 also charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the remaining vesting penog

Where equity instruments are granted to persons other than employees, the Statement of Comprehensive Income 1s charged with
the fair value of goods and services receved

The proceeds receved, net of any directly attnbutable transaction costs, are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium when the options are exercised

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee All the other leases are classified as operating leases
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1. Accounting policies continued

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases and other sumilar contracts, which confer nghts and obligations similar to those attached to owned
assets, are capitalised as property, plant and equipment and are deprecated over the shorter of the lease terms and their useful
ves The capital elements of future lease obhgations are recorded as labilities, while the interest elements are charged to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income over the period of the leases to produce a constant rate of charge on the balance of capital
repayments outstanding Hire purchase transactions are dealt with similarly, except that assets are depreciated over their useful lves

Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term, even if the payments are not made on such
a basis Benefits received and recewvable as an incentive to sign an operating lease are similarly spread on a straight-line basis

The Group as lessor
Rental income from the Group’s land and buildings, accounted for within property, plant and equipment, 15 recognised on a
straight-hine basis over the lease term

Exceptional items
Exceptional items are those that in management’s judgement need 10 be disclosed by virtue of their size or incidence in order for
the user to obtain a proper understanding of the financial information

Provisions

Prowisions are recognised when the Group has a present oblhigation as a result of a past event, and 1t 1s probable that the Group will
be required to settle that obligation Provisions are measured at the Directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settte the
obligation at the Balance Sheet date, and are discounted to present value where the effect 1s matenal

Critical accounting judgements

In the application of the accounting pohcies, which are detailled in this note, the Drrectors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and habilities that are not readily apparent from other sources
The cnitical jJudgements are discussed below

Business combinations
Management apply judgement in respect of each business combination entered into in respect of ther assessment of the date
when control passes

Classification of convertible bonds

The terms of convertible bond instruments, including all conditrons under which an adjustment to the conversion pnice can be
made Where in management’s judgement such terms are all considered to be anti-dilutive to the bondholder, the mnstrument is
recognised as a compound financial instrument In accordance with the requirements of I1AS 32

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant
Actual resutts may differ from these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised In
the period in which the estimate 1s revised if the revisions affect only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the rewision affects both current and future periods

The estimates and assumptrons, which have a significant nsk of causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
habilities within the next finanaial year, are discussed below

Share-based payments
Management applies vatuation techniques to calculate the fair value of share option charges Note 20 prowides information on the
choice of valuation techruque and the assumptions used in these Financial Statements

Customer habilities

Customer hatnlities represent cash held by the Group on behalf of customers These are stated net of an allowance for uncollected
dormant balances Management apply jJudgement calculating the allowance by reference to player terms and conditions in assessing
the likelihood of balances being reclaimed
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1 Accounting policies continued

Measurement of convertible bonds

The finance cost of convertible bonds 1s calculated using an effective rate of interest, which is at a premium to the coupon rate
This effective rate 1s calculated based on the estimate of the cost of a similar instrument without a conversion option

2. Net gaming revenue

2011 2010

£m £m

Gaming revenue 2243 2263
Promotional bonuses (20 3} (18 8)
Net gaming revenue 204 0 2075

3 Operating segments
For management purposes, the Group Is currently organised into three geographical regtons — Europe, Australta and Emerging
Markets These regions are the basis on which the Group reports its operating segments

The following table presents revenue and profit information and certain asset and lability information regarding the Group's
operating segments for the years ended 31 July 2011 and 31 July 2010

Emerging Markets refer to the Group’s operations in Canada, Brazil, Chile and South Africa

2011
Emerging  Unallocated
Europe Austraha Markets  central costs Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Amounts wagered 11255 8220 106 4 - 2,0539
Total revenue 158 6 371 106 - 206 3
Depreciation and amortisation of software (11 4) (1 8) - (01} {13.3)
Administrative expenses before exceptional items, share option
charge and amortisation of intangible assets (108 2) (26 4) (71} {13 2) (154 9)
Group operating profit/{loss) before exceptional
items, share option charge and amortisation of other
intangible assets 390 89 35 {13 3) 381
Other administrative expenses
Exceptional items {(12) - - {9 6) {10.8)
Share option charge (0 5) {(02) - (0 5) (12)
Amortisation of other intangible assets (17) - - - 7
Total administrative expenses (123 0) (28 4) (71) (23 4) (181 9)
Operating profit/(loss) 356 87 35 (23 4) 244
Finance income/{cost) 08 05 (01) (1 8) (0 6)
Taxation 0 2) (29) - - (3.1)
Profit/(loss) for the year 362 63 34 (25 2) 207
Balance Sheet information
Total assets 268 2 307 - - 2989
Total habilities (114 8) (56) - - (120.4})

Expenditure incurred to acquire property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets 223 27 - - 250
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201
Other
Sports Casino Poker operating
betting gaming rake revenue Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Amounts wagered 2,0090 475 177 - 20742
Promotional bonuses (12 4) (35 {4 4} - (20 3)
Net amounts wagered 1,996 6 44.0 133 - 2,053 9
Revenue 1591 475 177 23 226 6
Promotional bonuses (12 4) (35) (4 4) - (20 3)
Tetal revenue 146 7 44.0 133 23 206 3
2010
Emerging Unallocated
Europe Australia Markets central costs Total
£fm £m £m £m £m
Amounts wagered 1,1578 7439 696 - 19713
Total revenue 1674 336 65 - 2075
Depreciation and amortisation of software Q7N (o - (04 {111}
Administrative expenses before exceptional items, share option
charge and amortisation of intangible assets (112 2} (24 8) a7 {19 3) (161 0}
Group operating profit/(loss) before exceptional
items, share option charge and amortisation of other
intangible assets 455 78 18 (197 354
Other administrative expenses
Exceptional items - - - (24 5) (24 5}
Share option charge {0 5} 01N - (14) {2 0}
Amortisation of other intangible assets (18} - - - (18}
Total administrative expenses (124 2) {259) 47) (45 6) {200 4}
Operating profit/{loss) 432 77 18 (45 6) 71
Finance cost - - - 02 (0 2)
Taxation 0 4) (2 6 - - (3 0}
Profit/(loss) for the year 428 51 18 (45 8) 39
Balance Sheet information
Total assets 1384 264 - - 164 8
Total liabilities {60 2) (119 - - {72 1)
Expenditure incurred to acquire property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets 217 20 - - 237
2050
Other
Sports Casino Poker operating
hetting gaming rake revenue Total
fm Em £m fm £fm
Amounts wagered 1,920 2 48 2 217 - 1,9901
Promotional bonuses (11 2) (33 a3) - (18 8)
Net amounts wagered 1,909 0 449 174 - 1,971 3
Revenue 156 4 48 2 217 - 2263
Promotional bonuses M2 (33 {4 3) - (18 8}
Total revenue 145 2 449 174 - 2075
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4. Exceptional items

201 2010

Notes £m fm

Department of Justice settlement (a) - 228
Centrebet acquisition costs (b) 64 -
Costs associated with the possible disposal of the Turkish language website (o] 44 -
Move to the main market ) - 17
108 245

{a) The agreed settlement payment to the Unrted States Department of Justice in respect of the US-facing element of the Group's
business operating prior to the implementation of the Unlawful Internet Gambiing Enforcement Act (“UIGEA”) In return, the

US Federal Government will not seek to prosecute the Group with regard to its former actions in the US

{b) The costs related to the fees incurred in relation of the acquisition of Centrebet International Limited (*Centrebet™), which

completed after the balance sheet date (Note 23)
() Legal and professional fees relating to the strategic review of the Turkish language website

(d) The costs related to transferring the histing of the Group's entire 1ssued share capital from AIM to a premium listing on the

Otfical List of the UK Listing Authonity (" Official List™)

5. Profit before taxation

2011 2010
£m fm
Net foreign exchange losses - (19
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 52 54
Amortisation of software 81 57
Auditors’ remuneration
Audit services 01 01
Audtt of subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 03 03
Tax services - 01
Transaction support services 08 04
6. Share option charge
2011 2010
£m £m
Share option charge 12 11
Social security costs on share options - 09
12 20
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7. Staff costs

2011 2010
No No

The average monthly number of employees (including Executive Directors) was.
Europe 517 468
Austraha 13 103
630 571
2011 2010
Em £fm

Employee costs (including Executive Directors) were as follows.

Wages and salaries 331 357
Social security costs 33 38
Pension costs 22 15
386 410

The following table sets out Directors’ remuneration There are no key management personngl other than the Group's Directors

2011 2010
fm fm
Directors’ remuneration
Salary and fees 13 14
Bonuses - 11
Share-based payments 04 28
Total emoluments 17 53
Pension contributions 01 01
18 54

Further disclosures on the remuneration of each individual Director are given in the Remuneration Repert on pages 39 10 44

8. Net finance income/{costs)

2011 2010
£m fm

Bank loans and overdrafts (0.9) {05
Finance lease interest (02) on
(11) (0 6)

Interest recevable 05 04

(0 6) 02
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9. Taxation
The tax charge for the year 1s higher than the standard UK rate of corporation tax as explamed below

2011 2010
fm £fm

Note 9(a) Analysis of charge in the period
Current tax
UK corporation tax on losses of the penod - -
Overseas taxation 29 30
Adjustments to overseas taxation in respect of previous penods (10) 06
Total current tax 19 36
Deferred tax
Current year movement to deferred tax 12 (0 6)
Total deferred tax {(Note 9(c)) 12 (0 6}
Tax on profit on ordinary actvities (Note (b)) 31 30
Note 9(b) Factors affecting the tax charge for the period
Profit on ordinary actvities before tax 238 69
Profit on ordinary activities multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK 27% (2010 28%) 65 19
Effects of
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 21 104
Effect of lower tax rates on overseas earnings (87) (10 6)
Difference between fixed assets and capital allowances 02 -
Tax losses arising in year 31 33
Other timing differences 03) (4
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of previous penods (10) (06}
Tax charge for the period (Note 9(a)) 19 30
Note 9(c) Provision for deferred tax (deferred tax asset)
Other timing differences - (08)
Provision for deferred tax at 27% (2010 28%) - {0 6)
As at the beginning of the year (2.0) (14
Current year movement 1.2 {0 6)
As at the end of the year (deferred tax asset) {0 8) 20

UK deferred tax assets in respect of accelerated capital allowances of £nil, trading losses of £23 6m and non-trading loan

relationship defiaits of £2 8m have not been recognised on the basis that it 1s not probable that there will be sufficient taxable profit

in future years against which the assets can be recovered

A resolution passed by Parliament on 29 March 2011 reduced the main rate of corporation tax to 26% from 1 April 2011 On 5 July
2011 a further cut in the main UK corporation tax rate from 26% to 25% was substantively enacted, with the reduction to take

effect on 1 Aprd 2012 The deferred tax batance has therefore been recognised at 25%

In addition to the change in rate of corporation tax disclosed above, further reductions to the main rate are proposed to reduce the
rate by 1% per annum to 23% by 1 Apnl 2014 None of these expected rate reductions had been substantively enacted at the

Balance Sheet date and, therefore, are not included in these Financial Statements
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10. Earnings per share

2011 2010
Total Total

Profit per ordinary share

Basic 39 0 8p

Diluted 39p 07p

Adjusted earnings per ordinary share (before exceptional items, share option charge

and amortisation)
Basic 6 6p 6 5p
Diluted 6 3p 6 2p

The calcutation of basic earnings ger share 1s hased on the profit on ardinary activities after taxation attributable to shareholders
of Sportingbet Plc and the weighted average number of shares in 1ssue during the year

The Group has adjusted its earmings per ordinary share to exclude exceptional items, share option charge and amortisation

2011 2010

£m £m

Basic earnings 207 39
Exceptional items 108 245
Share option charge 12 20
Amortisation 17 18
Ad)justed earnings 344 322

After taking into account the dilutive effects of convertible bonds, the diluted earnings are £21 7m (2010 £3 9m) and the adjusted
diluted earnings are £35 4m (2010 £32 2m)

During the year the Group had the following weighted average number of shares in 1ssue and potentally dilutive shares

2014 2010

No Ne

Weighted average number of shares in 15sue 524,559,273 496,107,615

Employee share schemes 16,360,174 16,181,226

Convertible loan notes 18,373,559 -

Fully diluted number of weighted average number of shares in 15sue 559,293,006 515,288,841
As at 31 july 2011 the Group had the following shares in 1ssue and potentially dilutive shares

201 2010

No No

Number of shares in 1ssue 660,543,128 502,038,144

Employee share schemes 16,360,174 19,181,226

Convertible loan notes 128,968,253 -

Fully dlduted number of shares in 1ssue 805,871,555 521,218,370
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1. Goodwill
fm
Cost
As at 1 August 2009 242 8
Exchange movements 04
As at 1 August 2010 243 2
Exchange movements 04
As at 31 July 2011 243 6
Impairment losses
As at 1 August 2009 2016
Exchange movements 01
As at 1 August 2010 2017
Exchange movements 01
As at 31 July 2011 2018
Net book value
As at 31 July 2011 41.8
As at 31 July 2010 415
Movements arose as a result of changes in the underlying value of the amount payable to satisfy the contingent consideration
Subsequent to the annual iImpairment test for 2011, the carrying amount of goodwill 1s allocated to the following cash-
generating umits
2011 2010
£m fm
Eurcpe 17.8 178
Australia 240 237
418 415

The recoverable amounts for the cash-generating units above are determined based on internal discounted cash flow evaluation The
cash flow evaluation 1s based on actual operating results and five year forecasts at the growth rates stated in the key assumptions

Management consider the key assumptions to be the selection of growth and discount rates

Discount rates for the goodwill impairment review are based on Company specific pre-tax weighted average cost of capital
percentages and range from 10% to 15%, based on management’s assessment of comparable companies in the sector The future
cash flows are modelled based on budgeted projecttons and cash flows beyond the budget period are extrapolated using a growth
rate of 1% The growth rate apphed is based on past experience Future cash flows are projected assurming no changes to the
current regutatory environment

Determining whether goodwill 15 impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of each Cash-Generating Unit based on the key
assumptions above A change of 2% in either of the key assumptions would not result in the impairment of goodwill
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12 Other intangible assets

Software Other Total
£m fm £fm

Cost
As at 1 August 2009 234 139 373
Additions 133 - 133
Disposals 0N - 07
Exchange movements - (¢R] 01
As at 1 August 2010 360 140 500
Additions 209 - 209
Disposals - - -
Exchange movements 03 - 03
As at 31 July 2011 572 140 7112
Amortisation and impairment losses
As at 1 August 2009 138 76 214
Charge for the year 57 18 75
Disposals {¢6) - {0 6}
Exchange movements 2 01 {01}
As at 1 August 2010 187 95 28 2
Charge for the year g1 17 98
Disposals - - -
Exchange movements - - _
As at 31 July 2011 268 112 380
Net book value
As at 31 July 2011 304 28 33.2
As at 31 July 2010 173 45 218

The £14 Om ot other intangible ¢osts includes £5 3m caprtalisation of the Superbahis URL and contract, and £8 7m relating to the
Belmond International Limited marketing contract

Amortisation of software is charged to admimistrative expenses In the Statement of Comprehensive Income Other amortisation and
impairment losses are charged to other amortisation within other administrative expenses
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13. Property, plant and equipment

Fixtures

fittings and Motor Computer  Freehold land
equipment vehigles equipment  and builldings Total
fm £m £m £m £m

Cost
As at 1 August 2009 60 a1 154 127 342
Additions 14 01 75 14 104
Disposals (02) - o7 - (0 9)
Exchange movements 01 - 02 - 03
As at 1 August 2010 73 02 224 141 440
Additions 07 - 34 - 41
Disposals {15) - - 12 (0 3)
Exchange movements - - 05 - 05
As at 31 July 2011 65 02 263 153 48 3
Depreciation
As at 1 August 2009 30 01 85 07 123
Charge for the year 1M - 39 04 54
Disposals {02) - {0 6} - 08
Exchange adjustments - - - - -
As at 1 August 2010 39 01 na 1% 169
Charge for the year 09 - 39 04 52
Dispcsals 01 - - 01 -
Exchange adjustments - - - - -
As at 31 July 2011 47 01 157 16 221
Net bock value
As at 31 July 2011 18 01 10 6 137 262
As at 31 July 2010 34 01 106 130 271
The net book value of assets held under finance leases amounts to £2 9m (2010 £1 9m)
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2011 2010

£m £m

Trade recewables 128 90

Proviston for impairment of trade recewables (4 2) 49
Trade receivables, net 86 41
Other receivables 23 32
Prepayments and accrued income 54 53
163 126

Other recetvables includes £0 8m of called up share capital net paid All called up share capital was fully paid in August 2011

Trade receivables that are less than 30 days past due are not considered impaired As of 31 July 2011, trade recewvables of £8 6m
(2010 £4 im) were past due but not impaired These related to a number of independent customers for whom there 1s no recent

history of default

The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows

20m 2010
£m £m
Up to 2 months past due 48 36
2 t0 6 months past due 24 01
Over 6 months past due 14 04
86 41
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade recewvables are dencminated entirely in Austrahan doflars
Movements on the Group provision for impairment of trade receivables are as follows
201 2010
£m £m
As at 1 August 49 24
Provision for recewvables impairment 01 32
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectable (0 8} 07
As at 31 July 42 49

The creation and release of provisions for impaired receivables have been included in ‘administrative expenses’ in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off when there 15 no expectation of
recovering additional cash

The other classes within trade and other recevables do not contain impaired assets
Trade recevables are usually due within 30 days and do not bear any effective interest rate All trade receivables are subject to credit
nisk exposure, however the Group does not identify specific concentration of credit nsk with regards to trade recewvables, as the

amount recognised consists of a large number of recevables from various customers

The fair value of these short-term financial assets 1s not individually determined as the carrying amount Is a reasonable
approximation of fair value
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15. Cash and cash equivalents

201% 2010

fm £m

Cash 98 8 42 3
Short-term cash deposits 150 165
Restricted cash 66 4 a1
180 2 589

Restricted cash includes £62 Om {2010 £nil) of cash held in escrow in respect of the acquisition of Centrebet, which was completed
after the Balance Sheet date and described in Note 23 The remaining £4 4m (2010 £0 1m) 15 held in designated accounts which
have certain restrictions

Short-term cash deposits consist of balances held by payment service providers

16. Trade and other payables
a) Amounts falling due within one year

2011 2010

£m fm

Bank loans 40 40
Finance leases 20 13
Trade payables "o 68
Other payables 01 38
Customer habilities 209 162
Tax and social security 20 15
Accruals and deferred income 246 241
Derwatives 02 -
Qpen bets 18 20
66 6 597

Included within accruals and deferred income 1s £11 6m (2010 £22 8m) outstanding in respect of the agreed Department of Justice
settlement as referred to In Note 4 The final settlement date 1s 31 March 2012

Although repayable on demand, the Group has a bank loan of £4 Om which 1s available up to July 2012 The Directors do not
anticipate early repayment The loan 15 secured by a floating charge over the assets of the Group, and bears an interest rate of 1 5%
above LIBOR

The open bets at the year end are within the scope of IAS 39 as derivative contracts These bets are held at fair value with gains and
losses recognised in revenue Management's assessments of the exposure to significant changes in the fair value of open bets Is
assessed as neghgible due to the short-term exposures to such liabilities and the mimimal movement on average betting odds
between the date of bet placing and penod end
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16. Trade and other payables continued
b) Amounts falling due after more than one year

2011 2010

No No

Accruals and deferred income - 16
Finance leases 11 12
Convertible bonds due 2016 527 -
538 128

On 8 June 2011, the Group 1ssued £65 O0m of 7% fixed rate convertible bonds, raising cash of £62 Om net of 1ssue costs The equity
portion of the convertible bond issue 1s included within reservas

These bonds are convertible into ordinary shares of the Company at a conversion price of £0 504 on 8 June 2016 unless
otherwise redeemed

Interest 1s payable semv annually in arrears

Interest on the debt proportion, after the deduction of issue costs of £2 5m, will be charged to the Statement of Comprehensive
Income using an effective rate of 12 63%

17. Leases
a) Obligations under finance leases
201 2010
£m £m
Minimum lease payments
Within 1 year 22 12
Within 2-5 years 10 13
32 25
Future finance charges (1) -
Present value of lease obligations 31 25
2011 2010
£m £m
Present value of minimum lease payments
Within 1 year 20 12
Within 2-5 years 11 13
31 25
Accounts due for settlement within 1 year 20 12
Accounts due for settlement after more than 1 year 11 13
31 25

The Group has entered into three separate lease arrangements for the purchase of computer hardware and other associated assets,
each commencing on September 2009, August 2010 and December 2010 The lease terms for all these arrangements were three
years Asat 31 July 2011, the average iife outstanding on each lease was one year and two months for the lease commencing in
Septernber 2009, two years and one month for the lease commencing in August 2010, and two years and five months for the lease
commencing in December 2010 The average effective borrowing rate for the above leases were 5 1%, 4 8% and 2 8% respectively
The Group's cbhgaticns under these finance leases are secured by the |lessor's charges over the leased assets themselves as well as
fixed and floating charges over the current assets of Sportingbet Plc and three of the Group's subsidiaries
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17. Leases continued
b) Commitments under operating leases

The minimum lease payments under operating leases in respect of land and buildings that have been recognised as an expense for

the penod
2011 2010
£m £m
Minimum lease payments 20 18
The Group had outstanding commmitments from the future mimimum lease payrnents 1n respect of land and buildings
2011 2010
£m fm
Within 1 year 19 13
Within 2-5 years inclusive 37 27
I more than 5 years 21 28
77 68

Operating lease payments represent payable by the Group for office property costs

18. Financial instruments

The Group uses financial instruments, comprising cash and cash equivalents, short-term barrowings and trade receivables, which

arise directly from 1ts operations

Short-term receivables
The Group’s trade and other recewvables are actively monitored to avoid significant concentrations of credit risk

Derivative instruments

The Group takes out forward currency contracts in euro and Australian dollars Hedge accounting is applied 1o certain denvative

instruments as set out below

Interest rate risk

The Group finances its operations through a mixture of retained profits and bank facibties Interest on the convertible bond Is at a
hixed coupon rate of 7% Bank borrowings are made using vaniable interest rates The interest rate risk on the Group's £4 Om bank

loan is not considered to be significant

Liquidity risk

The Group seeks to manage hiquidity nisk, to ensure sufficient iquidity 1s avalable to meet foreseeable needs and 1o invest cash

assets safely and profitably
Sufficient cash reserves are held to maintain short-term flexibility, together with short-term borrowings

The followang table details the contractual matunity analysis of the Group's financial habilities

31 July 2011
S years

1 year or less 2-5 years and over Total
£m im fm £m

Financial liabilities
Trade payables 131 - - 134
Customer liabiltties 209 - - 209
Bank loans 40 - - 40
Convertible bond 46 832 - 878
Finance leases 20 11 - 31
Sports betting open positions 18 - - 18
Total 46 4 843 - 1307
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18 Financial instruments continued
Customner habilities represent cash held by the Group on behalf of customers net of an allowance for uncollected balances In the
event that the level of balanced reclaimed exceeds management’s expectation, the gross cash outflow could be higher

The matunity analysis in respect of sports betting open positions reflects the fair value of the liability position at the Balance Sheet
date In the event that the outcome of bets adversely affected the business, the gross cash outflow could be higher

31 July 2010
5 years

1 year or less 2-5 years and over Total
fm fm fm f£m

Finanaal habilities
Trade payables 121 - - 121
Customer habilities 162 - - 16 2
Bank loans 40 - - 40
Finance leases 12 13 - 25
Sports betting open positions 20 - - 20
Total 355 13 - 368

Credit risk
As explained In the Financial Review, the Group recharges its credit risk, ansing from credit facilities allowed to certain customers in
the Australian region, by making appropnate credit checks before bets are placed and setting credit imits based on this information

Currency risk
The Group's activities expose It to the financial risks of changes in foraign currency exchange rates, a significant proporuion of its
income 1s derived from foreign currencies whilst the majority of its costs are in sterling

The Group maintained 1ts proactive position and continued to hedge foreign currency sales with forward contracts for up to one
year, purchasing currencies to cover the first 80% of 1ts exposure on quarter ahead, 80% two quarters ahead, 70% three quarters
ahead and 60% four guarters ahead This policy I1s approved by the Board and the Board receives updates on a regular basis in
respect of the hedging position

The Group's dervative transactions comprise currency forward contracts During the year the Group entered into a number of
forward contracts over highly probably forecast euro sales

Amounts imitially taken to other comprehensive income under designated cash flow hedges totafled a loss of £0 4m (2010 £0 3m
gamn) of which a £1 2m gain (2010 £0 3m loss) has been reclassified to the Statement of Comprehensive Income on the completion
of designated hedge relationships Remaimng hedges continue to be highly effective

The tables below show the extent to which Group compames have monetary assets and habilities in currencies other than ther
locat currency

Net farergn currency monetary assets

Australian Other

Euro US dollars dollars  Brazdian real CUrences Total
fm £m fm fm fm £m

201
Sterling 158 51 25 2.2 37 293
158 51 25 22 37 293

2010
Sterling 16 2 19 02 33 46 362

16 2 L] 02 33 46 362
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18 Financial instruments continued

Carrying values

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial instruments are set out below As these financial instruments are not publicly traded,
the fair values presented are determined by calculating present values of the cash flows anucipated unul maturity of these

financial assets

Assets at {ar value through
the Statement of
Comprehensive Income

Loans and receivables

201 2010 201 2010
£m £m £fm £m

Finanaal assets as per Balance Sheet
Trade and other receivables - - 109 73
Cash and cash equwalents - - 180 2 589
Dervatives - 13 - -
- 13 1911 66 2

Assets at farr value through
the Statement of
Comprehensive Income

financial habilities at
amoriised cost

20M 2010 2011 2010
fm fm £m £m

Financial hablities as per Balance Sheet
Trade and other payables 18 20 320 268
Interest bearing loans and borrowings - - 56 7 40
Derwatives 02 - - -
20 20 887 308

Foreign currency sensitivity

Sportingbet Pl 15 exposed to market risk through its use of iinancial instruments and specifically to currency nisk

Exposures to currency exchange rates arise from the Group's retranslation of its foreign subsidiaries as well as the Group’s overseas
sales and purchases, which are prnmarily denominated in euros and Turkish lira

The following table illustrates the sensitivity for the net result for the year and equity with regard to the Group's financial assets and
financial hiabilities and the euro/sterling exchange rate and Turkish lira/sterling rate It assumes a +/~ 0 5% movement In the sterling/
eurc exchange rate for the year ended 31 July 2011 (2010 0 2%) and a +/- 1 0% movement for the sterling/Turkish lira exchange

rate (2010 0 5%}

These percentages have been determined based on the average market volatility in exchange rates in the previous 12 menths

If sterling has strengthened against the euro and Turkish lira by 0 5% {2010 0 2%) and 1 0% (2010 0 5%) respectively then this

would have had the following impact

2011 2010
Euro Turkish lira Total Euro Turkish hra Total
£m £m £m fm £m £m
Net profit (01) (0 2) (03} on 0 ©02)
Equity 1) 2 (03) ©n on {02
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If sterling had weakened aganst the euro and Turkish lira by 0 5% (2010 0 2%) and 1 0% (2010 0 5%) respectively then this would

have had the following impact

201 2010
Euro Turkish lira Total Euro Turkish kra Total
£m £m Em £m fm fm
Net profit 1 02 03 01 01 02
Equity 01 02 03 01 o} 02

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary during the year depending on the volume of overseas transactions Nonetheless, the
analysis above I1s considered to be representative of the Group's exposure to currency risk

Capital management

In common with many internet companies that have few physical assets, the Group has no peolicy as 1o the level of equity capital and
reserves other than 10 address statutory requirements Following the issue of £65m of convertible bonds in June 2011, the pnimary
capital risk to the Group 1s the level of indebtedness The convertible bond includes a finanaal covenant, which imits the Group's
indebtedness {excluding the bonds themselves) to £35m without the prior approval of an Extraordinary Resolution of Bondholders
As at 31 July 2011, the Group had £4 Om (2010 £4 Om} of bank loans which are secured on the Group's land and buildings

Detalls of the Group's dividend policy are disclosed on page 57 of this Annual Report

19. Share capital

201 2010
£000 £000
Authorised
1,000m (2010 1,000m) ordinary shares of 0 1p each 1,000 1,000
Allotted, 1ssued and fully paid
As at 31 July 2010 502,038,144 shares of 0 1p each 502 484
Issues of ordinary shares 154,761,904 shares 155 -
Other share issues in respect of exercised share options 3,743,080 shares 4 18
As at 31 July 2011 660,543,128 shares of 0 1p each 661 502

At 31 July 2011 the following share options were outstanding in respect of ordinary shares

Exercise price

Date of grant Ordinary shares of 0 1p Penod of option (p)
December 2003 1,115,000 December 2006-December 2010 395
January 2004 539,375 January 2007-January 2011 49
February 2004 100,000 February 2007-January 2011 395
May 2004 50,000 May 2007-May 2011 94
October 2004 100,000 October 2007-October 2011 975
November 2004 95,000 November 2007-November 2014 131
August 2005 22,250 July 2007-July 2008 -
June 2008 902,484 November 2009-November 2011 -
January 2009 11,164,161 November 2010-November 2012 -
August 2009 703,334 November 2010-November 2012 -
August 2010 455,736 July 2011-July 2013 -
Novemnber 2010 671,538 July 2011-July 2014 -
January 2011 145,000 July 2011-July 2012 -

As at 31 July 2011 there were 16,063,878 options or awards over ordmary shares outstanding, 2,429,860 of which relate to
Directors, details of which can be found in the Rermuneration Report on pages 39 to 44

Of the share options detalled above 784,375 relate to the Executive Scheme, 1,215,000 relate to the Unapproved Scheme, 22,250
relate to the 2005 plan, 902,484 relate to the 2006 Share Plan, and 13,139,769 relate to the 2009 Restricted Share Plan
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20. Share-based payments

The Company operates five equity-settled share-based remuneration schemes for employees across the Group, as hsted in Note 19
All employees are eligible to participate in these schemes, the vesting conditions being that the individual still remains in
employment at the date of the release of the option and n respect of the 2005 and 2006 share plans satisfy certam performance
critena The terms of these schemes are discussed in more detail in the Remuneration Report on pages 39 to 44

2011 2010
Weighted Weghted
average average
exercise exarcise
pniee {p) No price (p) No
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 23 19.181,226 25 39,630,748
Granted during the year - 1,489,665 - 703,334
Forfeited during the year - - - (250,000)
Exercised during the year - {3,997,878) 21 (18,158.451)
Lapsed during the year - (609.135) 67 (2,744,405)
Outstanding at the end of the year 27 16,063,878 23 19,181,266
Exercisable at the end of the year 501 2,021,625 S01 2,021,625

The exeraise pnice of opttons outstanding at the end of the year ranged between 0p and 131p (2010 0p and 131p) and thewr
weighted average contractual ife was 406 days (2010 675 days)

Of the total number of options autstanding at the end of the year, 2,021,625 had vested and were exercisable {2010 2,021,625}
The weighted average share price {at the date of exercise) of options exercised during the year was 60 8p (2010 74 4p}
The weighted average fair value of each option granted during the year was 58 1p (2010 56 3p)

The following information 15 relevant in the determination of the fair value of options granted during the year under the equity and
cash-settled share-based remuneration schemes operated by Sportingbet Plc

2011 2010
Equity-settled
Options pricing model used Black-Scholes Black-Scholes
Weighted average share price at grant date {p) 6170p 59 75p
Exercise price (p} nil nil
Weighted average contractual ife {days) 724 a30
Equity-settled
Expected volatility 50% 50%
Expected dividend growth rate 2% 2%
Risk-free interest rate 5% 5%

The volatility assumption, measured at the standard deviation of expected share price returns, is based on a statistical analysis of
daily share prices over the last three years

2011 2010
Em £m

The share-based remuneration expense comprises
Equity-settled schemes 1.2 11
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21 Contingencies

{a) From time to time the Group 15 subject to legal clams and actions The Group takes legal advice as to the likelihood of success of
the claims and actions and no prowvision or disclosure s made where the Directors feel, based on that advice, that action 1s
unlkely to result m a material loss

As part of the ongoing operational risk assessment process adopted by the Group, there is continued monitoring of the legal and
regulatory developments and therr potential impact on the business Appropnate advice continues te be taken in respect of these
developments

There 1s uncertainty as to what actions, if any, may occur from the Group's regulatory history, and any impact such action may
have on the Group However, the Board does nct consider it likely that a matenal liability or a matenal impairment in the carrying
value of assets will anse as a result of any potential actron

(b) The Group has been paying taxes in the form of product fees to vanous states of Austraha to the three racing codes The Group's
management believes the legal bases of these taxes 1s flawed and have been making payments under protest The Group has
pad A$13m to the state of New South Wales this financial year, which may be recoverable if legal action 1s successtul

22. Related parties

Transaction with Non-Executive Directors

Nigel Payne (Non-Executive Director) provided financial consultancy services to the Group amounting to £45,000 (2010 £20,000)
vra Merlin Financral Advisors LLP

Sean O'Connor (Non-Executive Director) provided marketing consultancy services to the Group amounting to £60,240 (2010
£19,800) via The Sean O'Connor Consultancy Limited

Transaction with key management personnel
The Group makes contributions into an Employee Benefit Trust (“EBT") as part of a cash-based long-term incentive plan for certain
key employees Two Directors are beneficiaries of the EBT into which contributions of £0 5m was made in 2011 (2010 £0 4m)

23. Post Balance Sheet event
On 26 May 2011, the Group announced a recommended proposal to acquire the entire 1ssued and to be 1ssued share capital of
Centrebet International Limited {"Centrebet ") effected by way of two schemes of arrangement under Australian law (the “Schemes”)

Foliowing the approval of the Schemes by Centrebet Shareholders and Performance Rightholders on 17 August 2011 and by the
Federal Court of Australia on 22 August 2011, the Schemes were implemented on 31 August 2011 and Centrebet became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Sbet Australia Pty Limited

In addition, Centrebet Ordinary Shares were suspended from quotation on the Australian Securities Exchange on 23 August 2011
and an application to remove Centrebet from the official {ist of the Australian Securines Exchange was made on 31 August 2011

The total fair value of the purchase consideration was £118 Om, comprising of 154,761,904 new Sportingbet ordinary shares at 42p
raising gross proceeds of £65 Om and an issue of £65 Om of 7% fixed rate convertible bonds due 2016, which raised a further
£65 Om, gross cf 1ssue costs

The inrtial accounting for the busmess combination has not been finalised hence an estimate of the financial effect of the
transaction cannot yet be made
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Parent Company Independent Auditor’s Report
Independent auditor’s report to the members of Sportingbet Plc

We have audited the Parent Company Financal Statements

of Sportingbet Plc for the year ended 31 July 2011 which
comprise the Parent Company Balance Sheet and the related
notes The finanaal reporting framework that has heen appled
in their preparation 1s apphicable taw and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice)

This repeort 1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a
body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we rmught state to the Company’s members those matters
we are required to state to them i an auditor’s report and for
no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Company and the Company's members as a body, for cur audit
wark, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities, the Directors are responsible for the preparation
of the Parent Company Financial Statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair ew Our responsibility

15 to aucht and express an opinion on the Parent Company
Financial Statements In accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board's (“APB's”) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the finanaal statements
A descrniption of the scope of an audit of financial
statements 1s provided on the APB’s website at
www frc org uk/apb/scope/private cfm

Opinton on financal statements

In our opinion the Parent Company Financial Statements

* give atrue and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs
as at 31 July 2011,

» have been properly prepared in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements
of the Companies Act 2006

Opinton on other matter prescribed by the

Companies Act 2006

In our opinion

* the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited
has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006, and

+ the information given in the Directors’ Report for the
financial year for which the Financial Statements are
prepared s consistent with the Parent Company
Financial Statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters

where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you If,

In our opinion

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us, or

* the Parent Company Financial Statements and the part of the
Directors' Remuneration Report 1o be audited are not In
agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

» certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specifled by
law are not made, or

* we have not received all the information and explanations
we require for our audit

Other matter
We have reported separately on the Group Financal Statements
of Sporungbet Plc for the year ended 31 July 2011

Paul Etherington BSc FCA CF

Senior Statutory Auditor

For and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP
Statutory Auditor, Chariered Accountants
London

4 October 2011
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Parent Company Balance Sheet
As at 31 July 2011

21 )uly 2011 31 July 2010
£m

Notes £m

Fixed assets

Investmenis 4 891 88 3
891 883
Current assets
Debtors 5 Mma 793
Cash at bank and in hand 6 621 -
1735 793
Creditors — amounts faling due withun one year 7 {19 0) (16 9)
Net current assets 1545 624
Creditors — amounts falling due after more than one year 7 {527) (116)
Net assets 190 % 1391
Shareholders’ funds
Issued share capital 8 07 05
Share premium 9 589 588
Reserves 9 1313 798
Equity shareholders’ funds 190 9 1391

The Notes on pages 80 to 84 form part of these Financial Statements These Financial Statements were approved by the Board and
authorised for 1ssue on 4 October 2011

A Mclver
Director
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1. Parent Company accounting policies

The Financral Statements for the Company have been prepared in accardance with UK law and apphcable UK GAAP
accounting standards

The principal accounting policies are summarised below They have been applied consistently throughout the financial year and the
preceding year

The following principal accounting policies have been applied

Exemptions
The Directors have taken advantage of the exemption available under section 408 of the Compantes Act 2006 and not presented
a profit and loss for the Company alone

Valuation of investments
Investments held as fixed assets are stated at cost less any provision for impairment

Leased assets

Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight-fine basis over the lease term, even if the payments are not made on such
a basis Benefits recerved and receivable as an incentive to sign an operating lease are similarly spread on a straight-line basis over
the lease term, except where the period to the review date on which the rent is first expected to be adjusted to the prevailing
market rate 1s shorter than the full lease term, 1n which case the shorter penod 15 used

Pension costs

For defined contribution schemes the amount charged 1o the profit and loss account in respect of pension costs and other post-
retirement benefits 1s the contributions payable in the penod Differences between contributions payable in the year and
contributions actually paid are shown as either accruals or prepayments in the Balance Sheet

Share-based employee remuneration
Where shares options are awarded to employees, the fair value of the options at the date of grant 1s charged to the profit and loss
account over the vesting period

Where share options are granted to employees of subsidiary undertakings, the fair value of the options 15 added to the cost of
investment 1n these subsidiary undertakings over the vesting pericd

Non-market vesting conditions are taken into account by adjustimg the number of equity instruments expected to vest at each
Balance Sheet date so that, ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised over the vesting period 1s based on the number of options
that eventually vest Market vesting conditions are factored mto the fair value of the options granted As long as all other vesting
conditions are sausfied, a charge 1s made irrespective of whether the market vesting condrtions are satisfied The cumulative
expense 1s not adjusted for falure to achueve a market vesting condition

Where the terms of the opticns are modified befare they vest, the increase in the fair value of the options, measured immediately
before and after the modification, is also charged to the profit and loss account over the remaining vesting period

Where equity instruments are granted to persons other than employees, the profit and loss account 1s charged with the fair value
of goods and services receved

Financial habilities and equity '

Financial habilities and equity are classified according to the substance of the financial instrument’s contractual obligations, rather
than the financial instruments legal form
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1. Parent Company accounting policies continued

Convertible bonds

The net praceeds receved from the 1ssue of convertible bonds are spht between a liability element and an equity component at the
date of issue The fair value of the hability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for stmular non-convertible
debt The difference between the proceeds of issue of the convertible bonds and the fair value assigned to the lhiability component,
representing the embedded option to convert the lizbility into equity of the Group, 1s mcluded in equity and 1s not remeasured The
fiability component 1s carned at amortised cost

STVIONYNH

Issie costs are appertioned between the liability and equity components of the convertible bonds based on their relative carrying |
amounts at the date of 1ssue The portion relatmg to the eguity component i1s charged directly against equity

The finance cost on the hability component is calculated by applying the prevailing market interest rate, at the time of issue, for
similar non-convertible debt to the hability component of the instrument The difference between this amount and the interest paid
15 added to the carrying amount of the convertible bonds

2. Loss after tax
Company loss after tax for the year amounted to £13 0m Audit fees for the Company were borne by other members of the Group
and are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated Financial Statements

3 Staff costs

201 2010 |

£m tm 1

Employee costs including Directors were as follows |
Wages and salaries 28 32
Social security costs 04 04
Pension costs 02 02
34 38

During the year 14 employees were employed by the Company (2010 14}

There were 2 (2010 2) Directors in the Company's defined contribution pensian scheme Further disclosures on the remuneration
of each indwidual Director are given in the Remuneration Report on pages 39 to 44

4. Investments

Shares i

subsidiary

undertakings

£m

Investment in subsidiary undertakings

As at 1 August 2010 883
Acquisitions - |
Options issued to employees of subsidiary undertakings o8 :
As at 31 July 2011 891 !

The Company made no acquisitions in respect of subsidiary undertakings during the year (2010 £41 3m)
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4. Investments continued
The following principal subsidianes were wholly owned at 31 July 2011

Country of incorporation

Actinty or regstratron
interactive Sports {Cl) Limited Online betting Alderney
Interactive Sports Limited Onlne betting England
Sportingbet Australia Pty Lirmited Online and telephone betting Australia
Sbet Austrahia Pty Limited Australia holding company Austraha
Internet Opportunity Entertainment (Sports) Limrted Online betting Antigua and Barbuda
Sporting Odds Limited Online betting England
MLB Limited Contract call centre Ireland
Anfield Group Limited Investment halding company BVI
Sb Properties (Guernsey) Limited Investment property holding company Guernsey
Sportingbet (Management Services) Limited Adrmunistrative services England
Sportingbet (IT Services) Limited Software development and T related services England
Sportingbet {Product Services) Lmited Market research, project management and England

web design services
Sportingbet Holdings Limited Group holding company England
Spread Your Wings Limited Online betting Malta
SBT Software Operations (SA) (PTY) Limred Online betting South Africa

For all undertakings histed previously, the country of incorporation 1s the same as the country of operation Sportingbet Holdings
Limited, Spread Your Wings Limited and SBT Software Operatrons (SA) (PTY) Limited are wholly owned subsidianes of Sportingbet
Pic All other companies listed above are wholly owned subsidiaries of Sportingbet Holdings Limited

5 Debtors
2011 2010
fm fm
Other debtars 1 07
Prepayments and accrued income 09 14
Owed by subsidiary undertakings 109.4 772
1M114 793

The Company has agreed to provide its subsidiary undertakings with such financial support as 1 necessary to enable the subsidiaries
1o continue to trade and meet their obligations to third party creditors as and when they fall due

6. Cash at bank and in hand

20m 2010
£m £m
Cash 621 -

621 -
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7. Creditors
a Amounts falling due within one year

2011 2010
£m £m
Bank loans 4.0 40
Accruals and deferred income 150 125
Due to subsidiary undertakings - 04
190 169
b Amounts falling due after more than one year
2011 2010
£m fm
Accruals and deferred income - e
Convertible bonds due 2016 527 -
527 16
Further description of the convertible bonds are given in Note 16 of the Group Financial Statements
8. Share capital
2011 2010
£000 £000
Authorised
1,000m (2010 1,000m) ordinary shares of 0 1p each 1,000 1,000
Allotted, 1ssued and fully paid
As at 31 July 2010 502,038,144 shares of 0 1p each 502 184
Issues of ordinary shares 154,761,904 shares 155 -
Issues In respect of exercised share options 3,743,080 shares 4 18
As at 31 July 2011 660,543,128 shares of O 1p each 661 502

As at 31 July 2011 the folfowing share options were outstanding in respect of ordinary shares

Exercise price

Date of grant Ordinary shares of 0 1p Peried of option {s)
December 2003 1,115,000 December 2006—December 2010 395
January 2004 539,375 January 2007-January 2011 49
February 2004 100,000 February 2007-January 2011 395
May 2004 50,000 May 2007-May 2011 94
QOctober 2004 100,000 October 2007-October 2011 975
Novermnber 2004 95,000 November 2007-November 2014 131
August 2005 22,250 July 2007-July 2008 -
June 2008 902,484 November 2009-November 2011 -
January 2009 11,164,161 November 2010-November 2012 -
August 2009 703,334 November 2010-November 2012 -
August 2010 455,736 July 2011-July 2013 -
November 2010 671,538 July 2011-July 2014 -

January 2011 145,000 July 2011-July 2012 -
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8. Share capital continued

As at 31 July 2011 there were 16,063,878 options or awards over ordinary shares outstanding, 2,429,860 of which relate to
Directors, details of which can be found in the Remuneration Report on pages 39 to 44

Of the share options detalled above 784,375 relate to the Executive Scheme, 1,215,000 relate to the Unapproved Scheme, 22,250
relate to the 2005 plan, 902,484 relate to the 2006 Share Plan, and 13,139,769 relate to the 2009 Restricted Share Plan

Further descriptions of the Group's share-based payment plans are given in Note 20 of the Group Financial Statements

9. Reserves

Equity

Share portion of
prermium Other convertible  Profit and loss
account reserves bond account
£m £m £m fm
As at 1 August 2010 58 8 - - 798
Employee share options 01 - - (07)
Convertible loan notes - 623 - -
Equity portion of convertible bond - - 103 -
Share option charge - - - 12
Dividends - - - (8 6)
Profit for the year - - - (13 0
As at 31 July 2011 589 62 3 103 58 7

The movement in Company shareholders’ funds of £51 6m (2010 £72 3m) 15 wholly represented by the movements shown in
reserves and share capital n Notes 8 and 9

10 Related parties

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption i Financial Reporting Standard No 8 "Related Party Disclosures” from the
requirement to disclose transactions with Group companies on the grounds that all companies are wholly owned

Transaction with Non-Executive Directors
Nigel Payne (Non-Executive Director) provided financial consultancy services to the Group amounting to £45,000 (2010 £20,000)
via Merhin Financial Advisors LLP

Sean O’Connor {Non-Executive Director) provided marketing consultancy services to the Greup amounting to £60,240
(2010 £19,800) via The Sean O'Connor Consultancy Limited

Transaction with key management personnel

The Company makes contributions into an Employee Benefit Trust (“EBT") as part of a cash-based long-term incentive plan
for certain key employees Two Directors are beneficiaries of the EBT into which contributions of £0 5m was made in 2011
(2010 £0 4m)




Shareholders’ Information

Registrars

All enquiries relating to shares or shareholdings should be
addressed to

Capita Registrars

34 Beckenham Road

Beckenham

Kent

BR3 4TV

Shareholder Helpline 0871 664 0300 - calls cost 10p per
minute plus network extras, (ines are open 8 30am->5 30pm
Monday—Friday If caling from overseas +44 (0} 20 8639 3402
Facsirile 01484 601512

Email shareholder services@capitaregistrars co uk

www sportingbetplc com

The Company's website provides, amongst other things, the
latest news and details of the Company's actvities, share price
information and hnks to the websites of our brands The
mvestor relations section of www sportingbetplc com contains
up-to-date information mcluding the Company’s latest results,
the Company’s financial calendar and archived webcasts
Non-shareholders can register to receive notifications of the
Company's Annual Report and Accounts, and webcasts at
www sportingbetplc com

www sportingbet-shares com

Shareholders who prefer to recerve commurnications about the
Company by email are encouraged to register their details at the
Company's shareholder portal - www sportingbet-shares com
You will need your investor code {found on your share
ceruficate or on correspondence from Capita Registrars) to
complete this process at the first ime of registening Capita
Registrars will send you a username and activation code by post
and, upon receipt, you will then be able to access the
Company'’s shareholder portal The shareholder porta! provides
shareholders of the Company with the ability to choose from
the following services

(1) Annual Report and Accounts, AGM and EGM notices
and webcasts

Sharehalders can choose to have these emailed to a specified
email address rather than by post,

(1) Web proxy voting

Shareholders can vote at AGMs or EGMs through

www sportingbet-shares com or alternatively, via

www capitaregistrars comn by clicking on the “shareholder
portal” and entenng Sportingbet as the Company name
You will need your investor code for this service (which
can be found on your share certificate),

(i) Announcements made to the London Stock Exchange
UK based shareholders can choose to recewve certain RNS
announcements by email,
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(iv) Direct dividend payments

Dividends can be pard automatically into a shareholder’s bank
or bullding society account There are two primary benefits of
this service a) there 1s no chance of a shareholder’s dividend
cheque going missmg in the post, and b) the dividend payment
s received more quickly because the cash sum Is paid directly
into the account on the payment date without the need to pay
in the cheque and want for 1t to clear

As an alternative, shareholders can download a dividend
mandate to complete and post to Capita Registrars,

(v) Change of address

Shareholders can change their address directly online at www
sportingbet-shares com or by notfying Capita Registrars in
writing at the above address,

{vi) Your shareholding
Shareholders can value their shareholding and view previous
transactions in the Company's shares, and

{vi1) Share dealing

A share dealing service 1s avaitable to the Company’s
shareholders to buy or sell the Company’s shares at Capita
Share Dealing Services via www sportingbetplc com or
www sportingbet-shares com Telephane dealing is also
available via Capita Registrars on 0871 664 0445 (calls cost
10p per minute plus network extras)

Please note that the Directors of the Company are not seeking
to encourage shareholders to either buy or sell the Company’s
shares Shareholders of the Company who are in any doubt as
to what action to take are recommended to seek financiat
advice from an independent financial adviser authonsed by the
Financial Services and Markets Act 2000

Lost share certificate

If your share certificate 1s lost or stolen, you should mmediately
contact the Shareholder Helpline who will advise on the process
for arranging a replacement

Duplicate shareholder accounts

If, as a shareholder, you receive more than one copy of a
communication from the Company you may have your shares
registered in at least two accounts This happens when the
registration detalls of separate transactions differ shghtly If you
wish to consolidate such multiple accounts, please call the
Shareholder Helpline

ShareGift

ShareGift 15 a charity share donation scheme It 1s a free service
far shareholders wishing to give shares to chantable causes It
may be useful for those who wish to dispose of a small parcel of
shares which would cost mare to sell than they are worth There
are no capital gains tax implications {1 e no gain or loss) on gifts
of shares to chanty and it 1s also possible to obtam income tax
relief Further information can be found at www sharegift org
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Shareholders’ Information

Finanaal calendar

Ex-dividend date for 2011 final dwidend 14 December 2011
Record date for 2011 final dividend 16 December 2011

Annual General Meeting at 4th Floor, 16 December 2011
45 Moorfields, London EC2Y 9AE

Final dwvidend payment date for the
financial year ended 31 July 201

12 January 2012

Consolidated dividend tax vouchers

Sportingbet Plc has a consolidated tax voucher ("CTV") service
for those shareholders who choose to receive dividends directly
into thewr bank or bullding society account Dividend funds will
continue to be credsted to your chosen account on the dividend
payment date, but mnstead of recewving mdidual tax vouchers,
you will recewe a CTV detalling all the dividend payments in the
tax year These will be maited at or shortly before the end of
each tax year

Choosing to have your dwvidends paid directly into your bank
account and joining the CTV service helps shareholders and
Sportingbet Plc reduce their environmental impact H you would
like to receive your dividends paid directly to your bank, please
visit the shareholder portal at www sportingbet-shares com to
download the form or to register your preference online

If you wish to continue to recewve individual tax vouchers
for each dividend payment but prefer to recewe the
dividend electronically to your bank account, please contact
our Registrars

Electronic tax vouchers

By registering your email address and choosing to receive
documents electronically, you will be assisting the Company
in reducing its environmental iImpact Shareholders
registering a vahd email address will recerve notification via
ema)l that an electrontc tax voucher or electronic CTV 15
available for download from the shareholder’s website at
www sportingbet-shares com/forms/login aspx at the time
each dividend 1s paid

Dividend Reinvestment Plan

A Dwidend Reinvestment Plan 1s a convenient, easy and
competitwely priced way 1o build your shareholding by using
your cash dividends to buy additional shares in Sportingbet

The service 1s provided by Capita IRG Trustees Ltd Capita IRG
Trustees Ltd 15 authornised and regulated by the Financal Services
Authority

For further information about the Dividend Reinvestment Plan,
please contact Capita, using the Shareholder Helpline

Would you prefer to receive your next dividend in a
currency other than sterling?

Capita Registrars can now convert your dividend into an
alternative currency such as sterlng, dollar or Australian dollar,
and send you the funds by draft, or if you prefer pay them
straight into your bank account For more information about
this service please contact our Registrars at

Email IPS@capitaregistrars com

Telephone +44 20 8639 3405 (from outside the UK)

Or 0871 664 0385 (from within the UK)

calls cost 10p per minute plus network extras, [ines are open
9 00am-5 30pm Monday-Friday

orgoto
www capitaregistrars com/international




Financial Summary
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‘fear ended ‘ear ended ‘Year ended ‘Year ended  Year ended
31 July2007 31 July2008 31 July2009 31 July2010 31 July 2011
£m £m £m £ £m
Amounts wagered 1,060 9 1,347 8 1,577 2 1,971 3 20539
Net gaming revenue 172 144 3 163 6 2075 204 0
Other operating revenue - - - - 23
Total revenue 172 144 3 163 6 2075 206 3
Operating profit before exceptional items, share option
charge and amortisation 78 247 in 354 381
Exceptional items (26 8) (12 0) 42) (24 5) (10 8)
Share option charge (99) (8 0} 3n (20 (12)
Amortisation (18) (39 (19) (18) (17
Group operating profit/{loss) (307} {0 8} 219 71 244
Net finance income/cost) 10 04 04 02 (0.6)
Profit/{loss) before taxation {297) 12 223 69 238
Taxation 12 (3 5) (@5) (30} {(31)
Profit/(loss) for the period (30 9) 23 218 39 207
Loss for the period from discontinued operations (281 3) (20 94) - -
Group profit/(loss) for the period (312 2) 43) 124 39 207
Earnings per share
Basic (73 2p) (0 5p) 46p 0 8p 3.9p
Basic adjusted 44p 4 8p 6 5p 6 5p 6 6p
Diluted adjusted 40p 42p 6 0p 6 2p 6.3p
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Corporate Directory

Secretary
D Talisran LLB (Hons) FCIS

Registered Office

ath Floor

45 Moorfields

London EC2Y 9AE
Company Number 3534726

Registrars

Caprta Registrars
34 Beckenham Road
Beckenham

Kent BR3 4TU

Auditors

Grant Thornton UK LLP
Grant Thornton House
Melton Street

London NW1 2EP

Financial Advisers
Lazard & Co, Limited
50 Stratton Street
London W1J 8LL

Stockbrokers

Onel Securtties Limited
150 Cheapside

London EC2V 6ET

Daniel Stewart & Company PLC

Becket House
36 Old Jewry
London EC2R 8DD

Solicitors
Nabarro

Lacon House

84 Theobald's Road
London WC1X 8RW

Principal Bankers
Barclays Bank Plc
Floor 27

1 Churchill Place
London E14 SHP

Press Office

Maitland

Onon House

5 Upper 5t Martin's Lane
London WC2H SEA




www.sportingbetplc com

Sportingbet Pic

4th Floor, 45 Moorfields
London EC2Y 9AE

Tel +44 20 7184 1800

Emaill investor@sportingbet com




